
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

  AGENDA 
MARCH 18, 2024, 11:30 AM 
 

 
I. Welcome         

 
II. Approval of Minutes      

A. *February Board Meeting      p. 3 
 

III. *Financial Report        p. 5 
 

IV. Committee Reports 
A.  Marketing Committee       p. 15 
B.  Quality of Life Committee      p. 55 

 
V. Staff Report        p. 81 

 
VI. Old Business  

 
VII. New Business 

A. Board Nominations due April 10 - nominations@downtownknoxville.org 
(two business representatives, one resident, one stakeholder) 

B. Discussion of Budget Priorities     p. 82 
 

VIII. Public Forum 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* Denotes action items 
 
Upcoming Board Meetings: 

April 15, 11:30 am  
May 20, 11:30 am  
June 17, 5:00 pm  

 
This meeting, and all communications between Board Members, are subject 

to the provisions of the Tennessee Open Meetings Act. 





BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
  MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 19, 2024, 11:30 AM 

The Board of Directors of Downtown Knoxville Alliance met on Monday, February 19, 2024, 
at 11:30 am at 17 Market Square, Knoxville, TN.  

Board members present included board chair, Matthew DeBardelaben, Chip Barry,  
Natalea Cummings, Vince Fusco, Lorie Matthews, Adrienne Webster, and Blaine Wedekind. DKA and 
Knoxville Chamber staff in attendance included:  Michele Hummel, Karen Kakanis, and Angela 
Lundsford. 

I. Welcome

Matthew DeBardelaben welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.

II. Minutes

Matthew DeBardelaben called for approval of the minutes from the January board meeting.
Adrienne Webster made a motion to approve the minutes. Natalea Cummings seconded the
motion, which was unanimously approved by the board.

III. Financial Report

Angela Lunsford delivered the report for the corporation explaining the various reports.
Adrienne Webster made a motion to approve the financial report, and Blaine Wedekind
seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved by the board.

IV. Committee Reports

A. Business Support Committee

The Business Support Committee met on February 12. The committee reviewed the
new/closed businesses, business support initiatives for the year, and discussed the upcoming
Merchant MeetUp meeting.

V. Staff Report

Staff presented their report, which provided an update on activities from the previous month.
The full reports were included in the agenda packet.

VI. Old Business

There was no Old Business.

VII. New Business

The board will be accepting nominations for four board positions: two business representatives,
one resident, and one stakeholder.  Nominations are due April 10.



VIII. Public Forum 
 

There was no Public Forum. 
 
IX. Adjournment 

 
With no other business, the meeting was adjourned.  

 
           
     Secretary   



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD February 29, 2024

Jul '23 - Jun '24
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 182,692
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1110 · Other Receivable (178,340)             
2020 · Accounts Payable (11,731)               
2600 · Accrued Payables 6,176                  
2700 · Accrued Wages -                      

      1350 - Prepaid Expenses 75.00
Net cash provided by Operating Activities (1,128)                 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3900 · Change in NA - unrestricted -                      
Net cash provided by Financing Activities -                      
Net cash increase for period (1,128)                 
Cash at beginning of period 1,552,490            
Cash at end of period 1,551,363           

Current Liabilities (29,018)               

Accrued Payables (313,353)             

Accounts receivable and Other 225,733               
Prepaid Expenses 525                     

Subtotal (116,112)             

Projected Remaining Budgeted Income (Expenses)

Revenue 166,067               
Development (115,000)             
Quality of Life (209,784)             
Business Support (20,578)               
Marketing/Sponsorships (110,699)             
Administration (93,284)               

Subtotal (383,278)             

Projected Cash - Before Minimum Reserve 1,051,973           

Minimum Cash Balance - Reserve (150,000)             
Projected Cash Availability 901,973              

DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Feb 2024 DKA Cash Flow Stmt Feb 2024



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal YTD February 29, 2024

Project Grants Permit Date Comp Date YE 6/30/2024 Total

314 Union Ave (COK) 250,000 250,000 250,000
Hilton Parking Garage 50,000 10/31/2023 50,000 50,000

300,000 300,000 300,000
* City approval required

Note:  Disclosure of Tax Abatement for Farragut Building.  CBID Board agreed to receive current assessment of $4,578 and forgo 
$19,012/year for 25 years - total abatement $475,302.  Based on estimated increase in projected value $18.4mm versus $3.6mm.  Tax is 
.32 per $100 on 40% of projected value.     

Note:  In 2013, Knox County Commission and Knox County Industrial Development Board approved a 10 year PILOT for Marble Alley 
Lofts, LLC.  The property was held by Knox County and did not pay property taxes because of its tax exempt status.  The property is 
now held by the Knox County Industrial Development Board.  Based on the current appraised value, at the end of the 10 year PILOT, 
CBID would be entitled to a projected assessment of $36,800 annually.
Note: In July of 2019, the Board of the Downtown Knoxville Alliance agreed to approve a 10-year abatement of the incremental CBID 
assessment for the State Supreme Court projects starting 48 months after the Dover Signature Properties closes on the two parcels of 
property from the City of Knoxville to allow for construction and project stabilization.  CBID will receive an assessment for both 
properties based on the acquisition cost of $2.6mm or approximately $320 for the property that will house the hospitality project, 
purchased for $250,000 and $3,008 for the parcel that houses the apartment project, purchased for $2,350,000.  Downtown Knoxville 
Alliance will receive this yearly assessment during the 48 month construction and stabilization period and during the 10-year 
abatement, after which the CBID assessment will be paid at full value.

DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Feb 2024 DKA Cash Flow Stmt Feb 2024



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget June 30, 2024

Acct # Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 Jan 24 Feb 24 TOTAL FY24 Budget Remainder
Income

CBID Tax Assessments 4020 19,389        1,773          6,485          569,786      34,010        45,466        47,394        225,733      950,035        1,125,000          174,965        
Investment income 4100 1,125          1,218          1,151          1,192          1,166          1,207          1,208          1,132          9,398            500                    (8,898)          

Total Income 20,514       2,991         7,636         570,978     35,175       46,672       48,601       226,865     959,433       1,125,500         166,067       

Expenses
Development

Path to Prosperity 5225 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -               15,000               15,000          
Special Projects 5205 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -               100,000             100,000        

Total Development -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -               115,000            115,000       

Quality of Life
Beautification 5659 77              77              3,533          84              1,852          3,470          90              83              9,266            90,000               80,734          
Ambassador Program 5657 9,676          9,676          9,676          9,676          9,676          9,676          9,676          9,676          77,411          117,000             39,589          
Residential - Other 5900 -               
Residential 5901 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -               3,000                 3,000            
Special Art Project 50,000               50,000          
Security 5700 3,557          3,854          8,012          3,610          15,547        4,509          20,551        3,901          63,540          100,000             36,460          

Total Quality of Life 13,310       13,607       21,221       13,370       27,075       17,655       30,317       13,660       150,216       360,000            209,784       

Business Support
Business Support 5676 523            2,779          5,957          4,259          10,044        4,264          672            924            29,422          50,000               20,578          

Total Business Support 523            2,779         5,957         4,259         10,044       4,264         672            924            29,422         50,000              20,578         

Marketing Expenses
Advertising General 5305 3,536          1,688          5,387          3,191          15,935        6,428          2,045          4,553          42,762          50,000               7,238            
Print & Design 5306 225            2,532          2,600          10,002        11,082        3,212          424            3,316          33,392          55,000               21,608          
Website - All Committees 5375 550            1,195          1,840          6,058          6,940          1,840          676            838            19,937          30,000               10,063          
Downtown Scavenger Hunt 5364 210            210               15,000               14,790          
Events and Sponsorship 5360 6,000          -             8,000          -             10,000        -             29,000        -             53,000          110,000             57,000          

Total Marketing Expenses 10,312       5,414         17,828       19,460       43,956       11,480       32,144       8,706         149,301       260,000            110,699       

Administration
Meals/ Lodging/ Travel 5420 840            224            194            268            398            -             427            205            2,556            6,000                 3,444            
Office Expense 5430 505            525            685            492            641            510            571            659            4,588            7,000                 2,412            
Bank Fees 5435 19              18              18              18              18              18              18              18              145               200                    55                 
Postage 5440 12              9                9                14              11              14              18              9                97                 2,500                 2,403            
Professional Dev. 5465 -             -             -             2,475          -             -             940            -             3,415            6,000                 2,585            
Professional Svc 5450 -             1,000          -             2,000          3,386          2,420          1,250          -             10,056          12,000               1,944            
Svc Contract - Operations 5460 19,849        19,849        19,849        19,849        19,849        19,849        19,849        19,849        158,792        238,186             79,394          
Insurance Directors/Officers 5750 -             -             -             75              75              75              75              75              375               900                    525               
Software 5480 -             65              -             138            69              69              69              69              478               1,000                 522               
Supplies 5470 -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -               -                     -               

Total Administration 21,225       21,691       20,756       25,328       24,447       22,954       23,217       20,883       180,502       273,786            93,284         

Total Expenses 45,370       43,491       65,762       62,418       105,522     56,353       86,351       44,174       509,441       1,058,786         549,345       

Change in NAV (24,856)      (40,500)      (58,126)      508,560     (70,347)      (9,681)        (37,750)      182,692     449,992       66,714              383,278       

DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Feb 2024 DKA Income Stmt FY24



Accrued Payables at 2.29.24

City of Knoxville (314 Union Ave) FY23 $250,000.00
Conservation Cooperative FY23 $3,500.00
East TN Historical Society, August - October 2023 events FY23 $0.00
Ambassador Accrual January FY24 $9,676.33
Ambassador Accrual February FY24 $9,676.33
Jazz Concerts 8 weekly jazz concerts FY24 $0.00
Big Ears FY24 $10,000.00
Dogwood Arts FY24 $8,500.00
Knoxville Museum FY24 $2,000.00
Knoxville Opera FY24 $5,000.00
Old City Market FY24 $5,000.00
East Tennessee Historical Society 2024 Events FY24 $10,000.00

$313,352.66



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Statement of Cash Flows

February 2024

  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 12:38 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income 182,691.59

Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:

1110 Other Receivable -178,339.68

1350 Prepaid Expenses 75.00

2020 Acc. Payable:Accounts Payable -11,731.00

2600 Accrued Payables 6,176.33

Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: -183,819.35

Net cash provided by operating activities $ -1,127.76

NET CASH INCREASE FOR PERIOD $ -1,127.76

Cash at beginning of period 1,552,490.44

CASH AT END OF PERIOD $1,551,362.68



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Balance Sheet

As of February 29, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 12:42 PM GMT-04:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

1000 Cash & Cash Equiv. 0.00

1005 Cash 0.00

1012 First Bank Checking 560,486.06

1016 Regions - Checking 147,609.52

Total 1005 Cash 708,095.58

1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM

1022 FirstBank CD 0680 96,075.51

1026 First Century Bank 254,658.84

1027 SunTrust MM Account 247,636.79

1029 Home Federal Bank - MM 244,895.96

Total 1020 Investments - Cert Dep and MM 843,267.10

Total 1000 Cash & Cash Equiv. 1,551,362.68

Total Bank Accounts $1,551,362.68

Accounts Receivable

1110 Other Receivable 225,733.24

Total Accounts Receivable $225,733.24

Other Current Assets

1350 Prepaid Expenses 525.00

Total Other Current Assets $525.00

Total Current Assets $1,777,620.92

TOTAL ASSETS $1,777,620.92

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000 Acc. Payable 0.00

2020 Accounts Payable 29,017.51

Total 2000 Acc. Payable 29,017.51

Total Accounts Payable $29,017.51

Other Current Liabilities

2600 Accrued Payables 313,352.65

Total Other Current Liabilities $313,352.65

Total Current Liabilities $342,370.16

Total Liabilities $342,370.16

Equity

3900 Change in NA - unrestricted 985,259.17

Net Income 449,991.59

Total Equity $1,435,250.76



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Balance Sheet

As of February 29, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 12:42 PM GMT-04:00   2/2

TOTAL

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $1,777,620.92



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Profit and Loss

February 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 12:47 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

Income

4020 CBID Assessment 225,733.24

4100 Interest on Cash Reserves 1,131.86

Total Income $226,865.10

GROSS PROFIT $226,865.10

Expenses

5100 Business Support

5150 Merchant Support 923.71

Total 5100 Business Support 923.71

5300 Marketing Expenses

5305 Advertising 4,552.82

5306 Print and Content 3,315.53

5375 Website 838.00

Total 5300 Marketing Expenses 8,706.35

5400 Administration

5420 Meals/Lodging/Travel 205.01

5430 Office Expenses 658.52

5435 Bank Fees 18.00

5440 Postage 8.96

5460 Services Contract 19,849.00

5480 Software 68.83

5490 Insurance D&O 75.00

Total 5400 Administration 20,883.32

5650 Quality of Life

5655 Bike Patrol 3,900.80

5657 Ambassador Program 9,676.33

5659 Beautification 83.00

Total 5650 Quality of Life 13,660.13

Total Expenses $44,173.51

NET OPERATING INCOME $182,691.59

NET INCOME $182,691.59



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/R Aging Detail

As of February 29, 2024

  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 12:46 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM CUSTOMER DUE DATE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

Current

02/29/2024 Invoice 02282024 City of Knoxville. 03/31/2024 225,733.24 225,733.24

Total for Current $225,733.24 $225,733.24

TOTAL $225,733.24 $225,733.24



Downtown Knoxville Alliance
A/P Aging Detail

As of February 29, 2024

  Tuesday, March 12, 2024 01:19 PM GMT-04:00   1/1

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM VENDOR DUE DATE PAST DUE AMOUNT OPEN BALANCE

Current

02/29/2024 Bill INV011853 Knoxville Chamber 02/29/2024 12 143.14 143.14

02/06/2024 Bill 11334 MoxCar. 03/07/2024 5 2,362.50 2,362.50

02/23/2024 Bill 02232024 KUB 03/12/2024 0 83.00 83.00

02/29/2024 Bill 0006228871 Knoxville News Sentinel 03/20/2024 -8 3,096.37 3,096.37

02/29/2024 Bill 2402478 High Resolutions, Inc 03/20/2024 -8 232.30 232.30

02/27/2024 Bill 20089790 Designsensory 03/28/2024 -16 60.00 60.00

02/29/2024 Bill DKA-030124 Southern Bloom Social 03/30/2024 -18 1,728.00 1,728.00

02/29/2024 Bill 02292024 Thomas, Robin 03/30/2024 -18 956.50 956.50

02/29/2024 Bill 2704 Loch and Key Productions 03/30/2024 -18 56.70 56.70

02/29/2024 Bill INV011855 Knoxville Chamber 03/31/2024 -19 19,849.00 19,849.00

02/29/2024 Bill 11389 MoxCar. 03/31/2024 -19 450.00 450.00

Total for Current $29,017.51 $29,017.51

TOTAL $29,017.51 $29,017.51



 

MARKETING COMMITTEE  
  MINUTES 

MARCH 12, 2024 3:00 PM  
 
 
 
 
 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance board members present included Matthew DeBardelaben and Chip 
Barry. Committee members present included Dana Dalton, downtown resident; Shera Petty, Visit 
Knoxville. Staff members included Michele Hummel and Robin Thomas.  
 
Event Sponsorship Requests 
 
Summary and applications are attached. Following a discussion of requests, as well as review of 23-24 
budget and anticipated funds needed for the remainder of the fiscal year, the following are 
recommended for funding.  
 

Organization Event Request Recommendation 

City of Knoxville Concerts on the Square $3,000 $3,000 

Knox Co Public Library Children’s Festival of Reading $3,000 $3,000 

Knoxville Jazz Orchestra Jazz on the Square $3,000 $3,000 

Nourish Knoxville Market Square Farmers’ Market $10,000 $10,000 

Old City Association              Rhinestone Festival $5,000 $2,500 

Total   $24,000 $21,500 
 
 
Discussion 
 
Based on a variety of factors—including request as percentage of event expenses, expected number 
and demographics of attendees, and/or potential economic impact to downtown—the committee felt 
that requests for Children’s Festival of Reading and Market Square Farmers’ Market are consistent 
with sponsorship guidelines and recommendations are made to fund at amounts requested.  
 
Following significant discussion about potential overlapping requests for Concerts on the Square and 
Jazz on the Square, the recommendation is to fund both at amounts requested. The shared costs by 
DKA and City of Knoxville for Thursday night concerts throughout the summer, plus stage and sound 
for three months of jazz concerts, is an important part of Market Square programming. The 
recommendation for Jazz on the Square as a percentage of total expenses is higher than outlined in 
guidelines. However, the presentation revealed expenses not included in the application for KJO 
concerts, and the committee felt the requested amount was reasonable for the number of concerts 
planned throughout the summer and early fall. DeBardelaben and Barry recused themselves from 
discussion and voting related to Concerts on the Square. 
 
The discussion on Rhinestone Festival primarily related to cost structure of the two-day event; Friday 
night is First Friday ArtWalk with events hosted by individual businesses, Saturday includes the 



Rhinestone Market which has been funded by DKA as a part of the Old City Market sponsorship. The 
committee felt a reduced amount was appropriate for DKA’s contribution to marketing of the event 
and funding toward Saturday programmed activities and increased costs related to KPD. For future 
funding consideration, a request was made to event organizers to identify methods of determining 
number of attendees or economic impact of event. It is also recommended that a schedule of stage 
events and neighborhood events be made available through social media as far in advance as possible. 
 
Recommendation for Board Approval 
 
$21,500 to be approved as outlined above for Event Sponsorships. Details of FY 23-24 budget are 
attached. 
 
Meeting Schedule 
 
The next committee meeting is Tuesday, May 14, 2024 – 3:00 PM. 
 
 
 



Dowtown Knoxville Alliance - Event Sponsorships
FY 23-24 (as of January 31, 2024)

FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 21-22 FY 22-23 FY 22-23 FY 23-24 FY 23-24
Requests Funded Requests Funded Requests Funded Requests Funded

Budget 60,000     80,000     90,000     110,000  

Previously Approved
Annoor Academy - International Food Fest 10,000     5,000         
Asian Culture Center of TN - Asian Festival n/a  20,500     5,000        25,000     5,000        
Asian Culture Center of TN - Japanese New Year 5,650        1,000        
Big Ears - Big Ears Festival 10,000     10,000     10,000     8,000        10,000     10,000     
Big Ears - Our Common Nature 5,000        5,000        
Bike Walk Knoxville - Tour de Lights** n/a 2,500        2,500        2,500        2,000        2,500        1,500        
City of Knoxville - Concerts in the Park 5,000        5,000        
City of Knoxville - Concerts on the Square 8,000        3,000        3,000        3,000         
Downtown Knoxville - Peppermint Grove 10,000     10,000     
Downtown Knoxville - Spring Lighting 10,000     10,000     
Dogwood Arts - 2024 Events 12,000     8,500        
Dogwood Arts - Arts Festival 6,000        6,000        6,000        6,000        6,000        6,000        
Dogwood Arts - Chalk Walk n/a 2,500        2,500        2,500        2,500        
Dogwood Arts - Southern Skies n/a 5,000        5,000        5,000        1,500        
East TN Hist Society - Children's Gallery 2,500        2,500        
East TN Hist Society - annual events 5,000        5,000        10,000     10,000     
East TN Hist Society - Lights! Camera! East TN 5,000        5,000        
Event Pro LLC - Knox Food Fest 10,001     5,000         
HoLa Hora Latina - HoLa Festival 5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        
Knox Co - Children's Festival of Reading n/a  3,000        3,000        3,000        3,000         
Knoxville Community Media - Fall Concerts 10,000     - 5,000        -
Knoxville Jazz Orchestra - Jazz at the Emporium 5,000        1,000        
Knoxville Museun of Art - Free Family Fun Day(s)*** 1,300        2,000        
Knoxville Opera - Musical Theater Marathon 4,000        1,500        
Knoxville Opera - Rossini Festival n/a  20,000     5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        
Knoxville Opera - Spring Regatta 1,050        -
Make Music Knoxville - Carol Cart 3,400        2,000        
Maker City - Maker City Summit 5,000        -
Nourish Knoxville - Farmers' Market 10,000     10,000     10,000     10,000     10,000     10,000      
Nourish Knoxville - Winter Market 5,000        5,000        
Old City Assn - Dolly Fest/Rhinestone Fest 10,000     5,000        10,000     2,000         
Old City Assn - Old City Market 5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        8,000        6,000        5,000        5,000        
River & Rail Theatre - 2021-22 Season* 10,000     -
Southern Fried Poetry Slam 19,750     3,500        
WDVX - Blue Plate Special 5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000        5,000         

Approved to Date 63,550     60,000     143,151  73,000     158,150  89,500     60,800     53,000     

Balance Prior to Requests -              7,000        500             57,000     

* Board chose to fund ouside of Event Budget
**23-24 funding includes guarantee of $1500 plus $1500 contingent on additional sponsorships, contingency not met
***23-24 funding includes events in March and August

Requests/Recommendation   Requests Proposed
City of Knoxville - Concerts on the Square 3,000        3,000        
Knox Co - Children's Festival of Reading 3,000        3,000        
Knoxville Jazz Orchestra - Jazz on the Square 3,000        3,000        
Nourish Knoxville - Farmers' Market 10,000     10,000     
Old City Assn - Dolly Fest/Rhinestone Fest 5,000        2,500        

Total Current Requests   24,000     21,500     

Remaining Balance  35,500     



 Concerts on the 
Square 

Children’s Festival of 
Reading 

Jazz on the Square Market Square 
Farmers’ Market 

Rhinestone Festival 

Request $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $10,000 $5,000 

Date(s) 

Tuesday nights:  
May, June & Sept  

3rd Thursday nights: 
May thru Sept 

17 concerts 
 

Tuesday nights: 
September 5, 12, 19, 

26 

May 18 

Tuesday nights:  
May, June & Sept 

12 concerts 
 

May 1 – Nov 23 
Wednesday & Saturday 

60 markets 
June 7 – 8 

Location Market Square World’s Fair Park Market Square Market Square, Market 
Street and Union Ave 

Old City 

History Prior Years: 10 
Funded by DKA: 3 

Prior Years: 17 
Funded by DKA: 11 

Prior Years: 10 
Funded by DKA: 0 

Prior Years: 20 
Funded by DKA: 14 

Prior Years: 4 
Funded by DKA: 2 

Most Recent 
Funding 

$3,000 FY 22-23 
$3,000 request 

$3,000 FY 22-23 
$3,000 request 

n/a $10,000 FY 22-23 
$10,000 request 

$2,000 FY 22-23 
$10,000 request 

Event 
Producer City of Knoxville 

Knox Co Public Library 
and Friends of Knox Co 

Public Library 

Knoxville Jazz 
Orchestra Nourish Knoxville Old City Association 

Other 
Sponsors 

Comcast 
Business/Xfinity, B97.5 

Confirmed: National 
Endowment for the 

Arts, TN Arts 
Commission, 

Dollar General Literacy 
Foundation plus many 

others pending 

n/a Grayson Subaru  

Confirmed: Club XYZ, 
Rala, The Daniel, Nancy 

Voith and Kenneth 
Stark, S2A Integration 

 

Admission Free Free Free Free Free 

Expected 
Attendance 

3,400 – 5,100 
(200-300 per concert) 

10,000 children plus 
their families 

2,400 – 3,600 
 (based on COK est) 

136,000-157,000 
throughout the season unavailable 

Estimated 
Expenses 

$19,400 $73,725 $6,400 $192,761 $25,045 

Projected 
Profit 

breakeven 
excludes staff 

breakeven 
excludes staff + admin 

n/a ($18,061) ($295) 

% of Expense 15.5% 4.1% 46.9% 5.2% 20% 

Per Attendee $0.71 $0.30 $1.00 $0.07 n/a 

Use of Funds Sound technician Artistic fees and site 
management expenses Artist fees 

Market operations 
including staff, 

supplies, on-site 
signage 

Event infrastructure, 
marketing, 

entertainment 

 



 

09/22 

 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance 
Sponsorship Request Application       
 
 
 
Event: Concerts on the Square _________________  
 
Date(s): May 7, 14, 16, 21, 28, June 4, 11, 18, 20, 25, July 18, August 15, September 
3,10,17,19,24 2024 __________________________  
 
Location: Market Square ____________________________________________________________  
 
Produced by:City of Knoxville Office of Special Events ____________________________________  
 
Sponsorship amount requested:  __$3000_________________
 
Event History: 
 
____ First-time event        (#) _10___ prior years                      (#) __3__ years of previous Alliance funding 
 
 
Contact: Elaine Frank ________________________ Phone: 865-215-2024___________________ 
 
Address: 400 Main Street, Suite 578 __________________________________________________  
 
Email: efrank@knoxvilletn.gov _______________________________________________________  
 
 
Event description:   
This is a free, family-friendly concert series that the City of Knoxville began to enhance 
the public’s experience on Market Square.  The live music of different genres attracts a 
wide range of age groups who enjoy the ambience on the Square.  This series enables the 
public to enjoy a free concert on the Square, bring their chairs or enjoy a meal on one of 
the many restaurant patios. 
Concerts on the Square consists of two different series;  

• Jazz Tuesdays: begin at 7:00 pm and end at 9:00 pm with performances from 
various Jazz Artists and groups within the community in the months of May, 
June & September. 

• Variety Thursdays take place every 3rd Thursday in May, June, July, August & 
September and begin at 7:00 pm and end at 9:00 pm with several of the 
performances featuring an array of music. ______________________________________  

 
Additional sponsors: Comcast Business/Xfinity, B97.5 ____________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Planned use of funds requested: We would use the money to help pay for sound technician to 
be on site for Jazz Tuesdays in May and June. ____________________________________   
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  



 

 

 
 
What is the projected attendance for this event? How will actual attendance be measured? Describe the 
demographics of anticipated attendees.  
 
The attendance varies for each concert and is dependent on weather, the majority of the 
concerts bring about 200-300 people. Demographic ranges of all ages, races, men and 
women with downtown residents, students and other people in the Knoxville area as 
well as anyone dining or shopping who happen to come across the free concert.   
 
The attendance is measured by Public Service and the Special Events office by counting 
the crowd that is sitting and enjoying the concert as well as people who walk by and stay 
for the remainder of the concert. ________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
What opportunities, if any, will be provided for downtown merchants to participate? 
 
People will be able to sit on the patios of Market Square and listen to the music, or they 
can provide to-go meals for people to purchase and take on the Square and eat ____  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
How will this event positively impact downtown? 
 
This event allows people to enjoy the ambiance of Market Square while enjoying live 
music from local musicians. People will be able to bring chairs and blankets, get to-go 
dinners from restaurants downtown or bring a picnic and enjoy free music.  People 
spend the night dancing under the stars, tapping their toes and laughing the night away 
with their friends and family while enjoying Downtown Knoxville. ________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
What effect would lack of Downtown Knoxville Alliance funding have on this event? 
 
Possibly offering less jazz shows ______________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Attach the following: 
 
Projected budget, including detailed income and expenses 
Detailed marketing and promotion plans 
Previous three-year actual financial results (if applicable) 
Proof of nonprofit status (if applicable) 



Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost
May 7,14,21,28 TBD sponsored by KJO 2,800$         
June 4,11,18,25 TBD sponsored by KJO 2,800$         
Sept 3,10,17,24 TBD sponsored by KJO 2,800$         

Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost
May 18, 2023 12 Eleven Band 1,500$               700$             

June 15, 2023
Jeanine Fuller/Souldiers 
Tribute 2,500$               700$             

July 20, 2023 Bicho Brothers 1,500$               700$             
August 17, 2023 Liquid Velvet 1,500$               700$             

September 21, 2023 Square Dancing 500$                  700$             

Total Variety Thursdays 11,000$        
Total Jazz Tuesdays 8,400$         
Total Cost 19,400$       
Sponsorships -$                

$19,400

Variety Thursdays

Jazz Tuesdays

Concerts on the Square 2024



Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost
May 3, 2022 Sam Adams Quartet sponsored by KJO 400$             May 2, 2023 Greg tardy Quintet sponsored by KJO 700$         

May 10, 2022 Eric Reed sponsored by KJO 400$             May 9, 2023 Tahj Walsh Quintet sponsored by KJO 700$         
May 17, 2022 Jack Roben Trio sponsored by KJO 400$             May 16, 2023 Vance Thompson Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         
May 24, 2022 Greg Tardy Quartet sponsored by KJO 400$             May 23, 2023 Jack Roben Trio sponsored by KJO 700$         
May 31, 2022 Mark Boling Trio sponsored by KJO 400$             May 30, 2023 Sam Adams Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         
June 7, 2022 Greg Tardy Quartet sponsored by KJO 400$             June 6, 2023 Margherita Fava Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         

June 14, 2022 Taber Gable Trio sponsored by KJO 400$             June 13, 2023 Mark Boling Trio Life sponsored by KJO 700$         
June 21, 2022 Ken Brown Quintet sponsored by KJO 400$             June 20, 2023 Taber Gable Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         
June 28, 2022 Margherita Fava Trio sponsored by KJO 400$             June 27, 2023 Ken Brown Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         

September 6, 2022 Matt Coker's Hammond Organ Trio sponsored by KJO 400$             September 5, 2023 Larry Vincent Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         
September 13, 2022 Larry Vincent sponsored by KJO 400$             September 12, 2023 Denin Kock Quartet sponsored by KJO 700$         
September 20, 2022 Shawn Turner & Pinky Ring sponsored by KJO 400$             September 19, 2023 Scott Simmerman & Friends sponsored by KJO 700$         
September 27, 2022 Jon Hamar sponsored by KJO 400$             September 26, 2023 Shawn Turner & Pinky Ring sponsored by KJO 700$         

Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost
May 19, 2022 The Coveralls 1,200$                               400$             Date Band Name  Band Cost Sound Cost

June 16, 2022 Evelyn Jack & Soule4 600$                                  400$             May 18, 2023 WIMZ Garage Band 650$                   700$         
July 21, 2022 K-Town Music 650$                                  400$             June 15, 2023 Club Rewind 80's Cover 800$                   700$         

August 18, 2022 Mike Snodgrass Band 750$                                  400$             July 20, 2023 7 Bridges 5,500$                700$         
September 15, 2022 Dirty Grass Soul 3,000$                              400$             August 17, 2023 Candela 1,700$                700$         

October 20, 2022 Commodore Fox followed by Joe Lasher Sponsored by Ingles 400$             September 21, 2023 Square Dancing 500$                   700$         

Total Variety Thursdays 8,600$                       Total Variety Thursdays 12,650$           
Total Jazz Tuesdays 5,200$                       Total Jazz Tuesdays 9,100$             
Total Cost 13,800$                     Total Cost 21,750$           
Comcast Sponsorship 8,700$                          Comcast Sponsorship 12,500$              

Downtown Knoxville Alliance 3,000$                          TVA Credit Union Sponsorships 5,000$                

Grayson Auto 3,000$                          
Downtown Knoxville 
Sponsorship 3,000$               

Total City of Knoxville paid $900 Total City of Knoxville paid $1,250

Variety Thursdays

Jazz Tuesdays

Concerts on the Square 2022 Concerts on the Square 2023

Jazz Tuesdays

Variety Thursdays



 

 

Concerts on the Square Marketing Plan 2024: 

 

We will have banners on Market Stage pillars, posters will be distributed to local businesses, concert 
information will be posted on our website as well as on Facebook and Instagram and other public event 
calendars. B97.5 is our radio sponsor and will be promoting the concert series and will have 14 
promotional announcements each month for Jazz, and 14 promotional announcements leading up to 
each Third Thursday. The series is also listed in the Visit Knoxville Visitor’s Guide. 

 

Poster design from 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Banner Designs from 2023 

 



 

09/22 

 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance 
Sponsorship Request Application             
 
 
 
Event:  2024 Knox County Public Library Children’s Festival of Reading 
 
Date(s):  May 18, 2024 
 
Location:  World’s Fair Park, Downtown Knoxville 
 
Produced by:  Knox County Public Library and Friends of the Knox County Public Library 
 
Sponsorship amount requested:  $3,000
 
Event History: 
 
____ First‐time event        (#) 17    prior years                         (#) 11    years of previous Alliance funding 
 
 
Contact: Jennifer Harrell, Library Fund Development and Engagement Manager _ Phone: (865) 215‐8713  
 
Address:  500 West Church Avenue, Knoxville, TN  37902 
 
Email:  jharrell@knoxlib.org 
 
 
Event description:  
Friends of the Knox County Public Library in collaboration with the Knox County Public Library will 
continue the tradition of bringing nationally recognized children’s authors, illustrators, and musicians to 
the families of East Tennessee during the 18th Children’s Festival of Reading (CFOR) on May 18, 2024, 
from 10:00 AM to 3:00 PM at World’s Fair Park in downtown Knoxville, TN. Goals of the Children’s 
Festival of Reading (CFOR) are to excite children about reading and to provide the East Tennessee 
community access to acclaimed children’s authors and illustrators. CFOR provides free access to 
numerous literacy‐enrichment activities through the participation of fifty community groups who 
provide arts‐ and literacy‐ activities for the Festival. Partners include Centro Hispano, The Bottom 
Bookstore (curating Black affirming, empowering, and authored literature), Knoxville Music Therapy, 
Human‐Animal Bond in Tennessee, Zoo Knoxville, Muse Knoxville, and the Children’s Diversity and 
Justice Library. Artist diversity is paramount to the event and CFOR staff invites a wide range of artists 
whose books feature characters of varying backgrounds and abilities. CFOR aims to excite children and 
families about reading and help them see the importance of integrating books and literacy skills into 
their daily lives. The Festival is proud to host world class artists including: 

 Alan Gratz, a Knoxville native and the New York Times bestselling author of nineteen novels and 
graphic novels for young readers including Two Degrees, Captain America: The Ghost Army, 
Ground Zero, and Refugee. 

 Cozbi Cabrera, the author and illustrator of several acclaimed children’s picture books. Her book 
Me & Mama received both a Coretta Scott King Honor and a Caldecott Honor for Illustration. 
Exquisite, a picture‐book biography of celebrated poet Gwendolyn Brooks (the first Black person 
to win the Pulitzer Prize), was the winner of an American Library Association Sibert 
Informational Honor and a Coretta Scott King Honor for Illustration.  

 Deb Pilutti wrote and illustrated Old Rock (is not boring), an Imagination Library book, Ten Rules 
of Being a Superhero, Bear and Squirrel Are Friends (currently featured in Chick‐fil‐A kids meals), 



 

 

and The Secrets of Ninja School, and illustrated Idea Jar by Adam Lehrhaupt. Her new book The 
Dinosaur in the Garden will be released a few days after CFOR and will be available at the 
Festival! 

 Ashlynn Anstee’s book (the title is confidential until the big reveal) will be given to 30,000 Knox 
County Elementary School children during the One Book Read City project. Students will read 
the book together in their classrooms during the first two weeks of May and then meet Anstee 
at the Children’s Festival of Reading! 

 KCPL is also under consideration by Meg Medina who serves as the eighth National Ambassador 
for Young People’s Literature. A Cuban American, she is the first author of Latina heritage to 
serve as National Ambassador in the program’s history. Medina’s books examine how culture 
and identity intersect through the eyes of young people. Her middle‐grade novel Merci Suárez 
Changes Gears received the 2019 Newberry Medal. 

 
The Children’s Festival of Reading includes six key areas: a Storyteller’s Tent, a Music Tent, an 
Authors/Illustrators Tent, an Arts & Crafts Tent, the Circus Lawn, and the Science & Discovery Tent. 
Local, state, and federal representatives and all festivalgoers are invited to participate in the Parade of 
Books, which features Festival artists and takes a lap around the World’s Fair Park site in support of 
literacy. The 2024 Festival will again include the Children’s Entrepreneur Market. Entrepreneurs ages 5 
to 16 participate in a farmer’s/craft market run entirely by kids! Children’s performance groups including 
the Knoxville Opera Children’s Choir and Knoxville Children’s Theatre are featured in the key areas of 
Festival. 
 
Nationwide only 40% of third grade students read at grade level. According to the Annie E. Casey 
Foundation a child’s reading proficiency by third grade has a direct correlation to success in high school 
and beyond. This study found that students who do not read proficiently by third grade are four times 
more likely to leave high school without a diploma. Only 42.9% of third graders in Knox County Schools 
met or exceeded expectations in English/Language Arts on the 2023 Tennessee Comprehensive 
Assessment Program (TCAP) test. While this is a slight increase in proficiency from 2022, still more than 
half of Knox County’s students are reading below grade level and students living in poverty and students 
of color typically score 18‐20% lower than their peers. 
 
The Children’s Festival of Reading strives to encourage children to find materials that they enjoy reading. 
The Festival also serves as the kickoff event for the Knox County Public Library’s Summer Library Club 
which provides a powerful framework to combat the loss of reading skills over school break. According 
to the Brookings Institution, on average, students lose one month of learning over the summer. This is 
the “Summer Slide,” which also disproportionately affects low‐income students and students of color. A 
new study published in the journal Psychological Medicine found that children who read for pleasure 
showed fewer signs of stress and depression, improved attention, fewer behavioral problems, engaged 
in less screen time, and enjoyed longer sleep. 
 
As the Knox County Public Library’s most significant engagement event, CFOR provides a free and 
accessible opportunity for all citizens to join as a community that experiences, learns, and celebrations 
literacy, books and reading. CFOR is not ticketed and is a free event open to everyone. Special 
arrangements are made to provide accessible parking areas on the grounds, as well as large‐print and 
Spanish‐language programs and brochures. 
 
CFOR will be promoted through local media coverage, targeted advertising campaigns, word of mouth 
and after a 17‐year history, for many families it has become an annual event. 
 
Additional sponsors: 
Confirmed: 
National Endowment for the Arts 
Tennessee Arts Commission 



 

 

Friends of the Knox County Public Library 
Dollar General Literacy Foundation 
TVA 
 
Pending: 
East Tennessee Pediatric Dentistry 
ORNL Federal Credit Union 
BlueCross BlueShield of Tennessee Community Trust 
City of Knoxville Community Improvement Funds 
United Way of Greater Knoxville 
Comcast/Xfinity 
East Tennessee Children’s Hospital Urgent Care 
Publix 
Radio Systems Corporation 
 
 
Planned use of funds requested:   
All funds will be used to support the artistic fees and site management expenses associated with the 
Children’s Festival of Reading and as matching funds to leverage federal and state grants for CFOR. 
 
What is the projected attendance for this event? How will actual attendance be measured? Describe 
the demographics of anticipated attendees.  
Given that CFOR is a free event at World’s Fair Park, attendance is difficult to measure, but by surveying 
area parking lots and tallying the number of chairs at all tents/performance areas, park officials 
estimated that 10,000 children with their families were in attendance between the hours of 10:00 a.m. 
and 3:00 p.m. in 2023. Success of the Children’s Festival of Reading is evaluated through attendance 
numbers, the number of children who register for the Knox County Public Library’s Summer Library Club, 
and on‐site surveys. 60% of survey respondents in 2023 were first‐time CFOR attendees indicating that 
the Festival remains popular after seventeen years. Registration for the Summer Library Club reading 
challenge opened the day of CFOR 2023 and 1700 signed up in the first couple of weeks tracking ahead 
of Summer Reading participation in 2022. 76% of families in attendance planned to participate in 
Summer Library Club, and in total, over 3,000 children and teens met their summer reading goals 
logging over 366,883 hours. 
 
The majority of CFOR attendees were from Knox County. The most frequent zip codes reported on 
surveys were 37909 Bearden, 37918 Fountain City, and 37931 Karns with 37922, 37923, 37932, and 
37934 in West Knoxville also reported frequently. Approximately 18% of attendees were from outside of 
Knox County. 
 
 
What opportunities, if any, will be provided for downtown merchants to participate? 
All Knox County organizations are invited to be vendors at the Children’s Festival of Reading. Non‐profit 
organizations pay a nominal registration fee of $50 to participate and are provided with a 10x10 tent, 
one table, and two chairs. Commercial organizations pay $250 to participate and are provided a 10x10 
tent, one table two chairs and the ability to sell and/or market their product or service to the public. All 
organizations must commit to providing a free arts‐ or literacy‐based activity to festivalgoers. Food 
vendors are considered on a case‐by‐case basis. If an organization sponsors KCPL’s Summer Library Club, 
their registration fee is waived.  
 
Downtown Knoxville organizations including Union Avenue Books, East Tennessee Historical Society, 
Historic House Museums, East Tennessee PBS, Tennessee Valley Fair, The Change Center, Muse 
Knoxville, Zoo Knoxville, United Way of Greater Knoxville, and the Women’s Basketball Hall of Fame 



 

 

regularly participate in the Festival of Reading.  All downtown Knoxville organizations are welcome and 
encouraged to participate. 
 
 
How will this event positively impact downtown? 
The Children’s Festival of Reading develops local and regional audiences for the literary arts and draws 
families to downtown Knoxville. 60% of survey respondents in 2023 were first‐time CFOR attendees 
bringing 6,000 people downtown. An additional 18% or almost 2,000 were from outside of Knox County. 
So, in total the 2023 Children’s Festival of Reading drew almost 8,000 people to downtown who came 
specifically for CFOR. Surveys list World’s Fair Park specifically as a favorite part of the Festival. The most 
frequent zip codes reported on surveys were West Knoxville, Karns and Fountain City. By providing this 
festival with a focus on activities for families and children, CFOR invites this demographic downtown to 
experience all that downtown Knoxville has to offer. 
 
 
What effect would lack of Downtown Knoxville Alliance funding have on this event? 
The Children’s Festival of Reading falls outside the core services of the Knox County Public Library (KCPL) 
and is not financed through the KCPL operating budget. Thus, without community support and 
sponsorships KCPL would not be able to produce the festival. 
 
Every dollar committed is spent on event costs and artists’ performance fees. In order to present CFOR 
as a free event, open to the public; sponsorships, grants and vendor fees comprise the entirety of 
Festival income. Funding secured directly impacts the quality of artists and activities that KCPL and 
Friends of the Knox County Public Library can present for Knoxville’s children. 
 
 
Attach the following: 
 
Projected budget, including detailed income and expenses 
Detailed marketing and promotion plans 
Previous three‐year actual financial results (if applicable) 
Proof of nonprofit status (if applicable) 



 

Children's Festival of Reading 2024 Expenses 
2024 
Budget 

Artistic Fees   
Authors and Illustrators $24,000.00  
Storytellers $3,900.00  
Musicians $2,800.00  
Other Performers $5,500.00  

Subtotal Artistic: $36,200.00  
Site Management   
Public Building Authority - Worlds Fair Park $3,850.00  
Road Closure, EMTs, Fire Marshal $1,150.00  
Springboard Media $2,250.00  
Event Rentals by Rothchild $16,860.00  
Children's Play Area $250.00  
Arts and Crafts $1,400.00  
Teen Area $250.00  
Storage and Staging (Marriott) $1,240.00  
Artist and Volunteer Hospitality (Authors, Illustrators, 100 Volunteers) $1,000.00  
Equipment and Supplies $1,500.00  

Subtotal Site Management: $29,750.00  
Marketing   
T-Shirts $1,500.00  
Signage $1,475.00  
Flyer and Event Programs $1,500.00  
Photographer $300.00  
Site Décor $3,000.00  
Subtotal Marketing: $7,775.00  

Total Expenses: $73,725.00  
  

  
Children's Festival of Reading 2024 Income   
Earned Income   
Community Groups and Vendors $5,500.00  

Subtotal Earned Income $5,500.00  
Corporate and Organizational Contributions   
Friends of the Knox County Public Library, pledged $9,000.00  
Comcast/Xfinity, requested $7,500.00  



Publix, requested $2,000.00  
TVA, pledged $2,750.00  
Radio Systems Corporation, requested $2,750.00  
Dollar General Literacy Foundtaion, received $2,000.00  
East Tennessee Children's Hospital Urgent Care, proposed $2,750.00  
East TN Pediatric Dentistry, proposed $2,500.00  
CGI, proposed $2,750.00  
Downtown Knoxville Alliance, proposed $3,000.00  
ORNL Federal Credit Union, proposed $5,000.00  
Bright Steps Initiative, United Way, proposed $2,500.00  

Subtotal Corporate Contributions $44,500.00  
Grants/Foundations   
National Endowment for the Arts, pledged $10,000.00  
Tennessee Arts Commission, pledged $7,200.00  
BCBST Community Trust, requested $5,000.00  
City of Knoxville Community Improvement Funds, proposed $1,700.00  

Subtotal Grants $23,900.00  
Total Income $73,900.00  

 



 

Income Children's Festival of Reading 2024 2024 Status 
2024 

Budget 
2023 

Actuals 2022 Actuals 
2019 

Actuals 
Earned Income           
Community Groups and Vendors*   $5,500.00 $5,517.00 $2,800.00 $3,025.00 
T-shirt Sales N/A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $230.00 

Earned Income Subtotal:   $5,500.00 $5,517.00 $2,800.00 $3,255.00 
Corporate Contributions           
Friends of the Knox County Public Library secured $9,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 
Comcast/Xfinity requested $7,500.00 $2,500.00     
Pilot Company N/A $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $5,000.00 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance proposed $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 
Publix requested $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
TVA secured $2,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Radio Systems Corporation requested $2,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Dollar General Literacy Foundation secured $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
East Tennessee Children's Hospital Urgent Care proposed $2,750.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 
East TN Pediatric Dentistry proposed $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 
CGI proposed $2,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
ORNL Federal Credit Union proposed $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 
BlueCross BlueShield Community Trust proposed $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 
United Way Bright Steps Initiative proposed $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 



Visit Knoxville N/A $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 
Music and Arts N/A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 

Corporate Contributions Subtotal:   $49,500.00 $23,000.00 $24,500.00 $20,500.00 
Grants           
National Endowment for the Arts secured $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 
Humanities Tennessee N/A $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 
Tennessee Arts Commission secured $7,200.00 $6,310.00 $7,400.00 $3,110.00 
Knoxville City Council Community Improvement (202) Funds proposed $1,700.00 $1,700.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 

Grants Subtotal:   $18,900.00 $23,010.00 $12,400.00 $19,910.00 
Donations           
Bequest Funds N/A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Existing Funds           
    $0.00 $23,172.88 $12,869.51 $0.00 

Total Income:   $73,900.00 $74,699.88 $52,569.51 $43,665.00 
      

      
      
      

Expenses Children's Festival of Reading 2024 2024 Notes 
2024 

Budget 
2023 

Actuals 2022 Actuals 
2019 

Actuals 
Artistic Fees           
Authors and Illustrators   $24,000.00 $16,190.79 $15,492.88 $9,386.00 
Storytellers   $3,900.00 $4,303.17 $1,450.00 $800.00 
Musicians   $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $2,925.00 $1,725.00 
Other Performers (Science, Characters, & One World Circus)   $5,500.00 $5,410.00 $3,260.00 $2,850.00 

Artistic Fees Subtotal:   $36,200.00 $28,703.96 $23,127.88 $14,761.00 
Site Management           
Public Building Authority   $3,850.00 $3,850.00 $3,880.00 $4,820.00 
Road Closure, EMTs, Fire Marshall   $1,150.00 $1,140.00 $640.00 $750.00 
Springboard Media   $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $1,750.00 $2,750.00 
Event Rentals by Rothchild   $16,860.00 $26,846.77 $13,209.00 $10,101.00 



Children's Play Area   $250.00 $249.40 $288.84 $250.00 

Arts and Crafts 
*includes expenses for 
2020 and 2021 $1,400.00 $1,387.39 2975.57* $1,100.00 

Teen Area   $250.00 $170.10 $250.00 $0.00 

Parade of Books 
*included in Site Décor for 
2023, 2024 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $720.00 

Storage and Staging Space (Marriott)   $1,240.00 $1,240.00 $1,220.00 $0.00 
Equipment and Supplies   $1,500.00 $542.38 $1,482.70 $0.00 

Site Management Subtotal:   $28,750.00 $37,676.04 $22,720.54 $20,491.00 
            

Artist and Volunteer Hospitality   $1,000.00 $303.58 $660.40 $1,021.00 
Marketing           
T-shirts   $1,500.00 $1,447.50 $1,436.58 $1,200.00 

Flyers and Event Programs 
Library print budget in 
2022 $1,500.00 $1,506.00 $0.00 $1,648.00 

Signage   $1,475.00 $1,468.95 $1,348.10 $816.00 
Photographer   $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 $0.00 

Marketing Subtotal:   $4,775.00 $4,422.45 $3,084.68 $3,664.00 
            

Site Décor   $3,000.00 $3,593.85 $2,976.01 $2,020.00 
Total Expense:   $73,725.00 $74,699.88 $52,569.51 $41,957.00 

      
      
*CFOR was not held in 2020 or 2021 due to COVID-19; and food vendors were handled by Visit Knoxville in 2022.   

 



 

 
Children’s Festival of Reading 2024 Marketing and Promotion Plan 

 
All marketing for the Children’s Festival of Reading is given to Knox County Public Library at no cost. Most printing and 
promotional materials are created and printed in-house.  
 
Please see: 
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1UD5RPFLjtS50R8a0szsdevqo64Et93iT?usp=drive_link for 
examples of marketing materials, video, and photos from the 2023 festival. 
 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance’s logo will be included on all Festival materials. Sponsorship will earn coverage in the following 
marketing venues: 
 
Television:  

 WBIR, Comcast, and East Tennessee PBS 
 PSAs on WBIR, 10News2, and ETPBS 
 Online coverage 
 Value: $9,250 

 
Radio:  

 WDVX 
o Kidstuff on-site live broadcast 
o Promotional underwriting value: $750  

 
Print:  

 Knoxville Kids Directory (250+ locations) 
 The Official 2024 City of Knoxville Visitors’ Guide 

o 200,000 copies of the Official 2024 Guide will be distributed through state welcome centers, the Knoxville 
Visitors Center, the Knoxville Chamber, the University of Tennessee, realtors, hotels, and attractions as well 
as conventions, trade shows and sporting events 

In-House Print: 
 School Handouts: 40,000 printed and sent to area schools 
 Flyers: 5,000 printed and distributed to all KCPL branches  
 Event Programs: 2,000 printed and given out during the Festival 
 Posters: 70 printed and distributed to all KCPL branches and to area businesses 
 Value: $7,000 

 
Email and Social Networking: 

 KCPL Website, www.knoxlib.org: 505,000 unique visits per month, with main page story and dedicated Children’s 
Festival Page  

 E-mail Newsletters: sent to more than 30,400 voluntary subscribers 
 KCPL/Friends of KCPL Facebook pages: 19,800 combined followers 
 KCPL/Friends of KCPL Instagram accounts: 5,650 combined followers 

 
On-Site: 

 On-site banners and signage 
 10 x 10 tent with table and chairs from which sponsors can promote goods and services.  

 
TOTAL VALUE: $27,000 



 

 

 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance 
Sponsorship Request Application       
 
 
 
Event: Jazz on the Square 
 
Date(s):  Tuesday Evenings starting May 7th  running 12 weeks / concerts     
May = 4 concerts, June = 4 concerts and September = 4 concerts 
 
Location: Market Square Band Stand 
 
Produced by:  The Knoxville Jazz Orchestra  
 
Sponsorship amount requested:  $3,000 ANNUALLY 
 
Event History:     10+ year history of Jazz on the Square 
 
____ First-time event        (#) 10 prior years                         (#) ZERO years of previous Alliance funding 
 
 
Contact: Kevin Grimac      Phone: 865-332-6666 
 
Address: 618 South Gay Street     Knoxville,  TN  37902 
 
Email:    KevinGrimac@gmail.com 
 
Event description:  Free Jazz !!    We’ve enjoyed a great run on Market Square.   The KJO would love 
for DKA to promote these FREE concerts with amazing professional local musicians.   Twelve FREE 
concerts sponsored by DKA at $500 each.   Every Tuesday after work (6:00PM) starting May 7th 2024. 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________   
 
Additional sponsors:  None presently.   We’re hopeful for DKA assistance and we would welcome any 
sponsor _________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Planned use of funds requested:   Musical artist fees.  ALL of our musicians are paid professionals.   
This concert series features Knoxville’s own Greg Tardy, Kenneth Brown, Vance Thompson and more 
accomplished professional musicians performing FREE to the public. 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 



 

 

What is the projected attendance for this event? How will actual attendance be measured? Describe the 
demographics of anticipated attendees.  
 
FREE Jazz on the Square concerts with varied demographics.    All are welcome.    We estimate that we 
attract a few hundred music lovers to these free events.   We have a loyal following in Oak Ridge as 
well as another loyal following from Tellico Village.    Our audience follows us and it’s hard to beat a 
beautiful Spring evening on Market Square with great free music.    
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
What opportunities, if any, will be provided for downtown merchants to participate? 
 
We would love to have local merchants join us on Social Media to pull attendees to their place of 
business promoting our Non Profit Organization KJO and their business.   
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
How will this event positively impact downtown? 
 
You can never have too much of the Arts & Culture and FREE cultural events are one of the many 
draws that Downtown Knoxville offer.   KJO is a Non Profit Organization celebrating our 25th year of 
music and music education thru out East Tennessee from our Knoxville roots.  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
What effect would lack of Downtown Knoxville Alliance funding have on this event? 
 
We will move forward with or without DKA funding but would welcome a sponsor.   We feel that our 
FREE concerts align with DKA promoting all that’s great about downtown Knoxville to enjoy.    
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Attach the following: 
 
Projected budget, including detailed income and expenses 
Detailed marketing and promotion plans 
Previous three-year actual financial results (if applicable) 
Proof of nonprofit status (if applicable) 



Musical Artist Fees:   Tabor Gable, Greg Tardy, Jon Hamer, Sam Adams, Kenneth Brown, 
Margherita Fava, Vance Thompson and the Bill Bares Trio 
 
Musician fees: $6000 
Venue rental:   Waived from COK 
Marketing: $400 
Sound Equipment Rental:    Paid by COK effective May 2024 
Insurance:    Awaiting final quote 
 
 
Additional note: 
We have booked these events and they will be posted on our website:  knoxjazz.org and we 
would be thrilled to have DKA or other private group or business to become a KJO Jazz on the 
Square sponsor.   Our concert series (Bijou & Swingin' Christmas at the Tennessee) start in 
October so FREE Jazz on the Square we feel enhances all that makes our downtown great to 
Live, Work and Play.     
 



 

09/22 

 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance 
Sponsorship Request Application       
 
 
Event: Market Square Farmers Market 
 
Date(s): Every Wednesday & Saturday, May 1 – November 23, 2024 
 
Location: Wednesdays – Market Square; Saturdays – Market Square, Union Ave. 
(between Walnut & Gay, & Market St. (between Union & Clinch) 
 
Produced by: Nourish Knoxville 
 
Sponsorship amount requested:  $10,000
 
Event History: 
 
N/A  First-time event                  20   prior years                14   years of previous Alliance funding 
 
 
Contact: Charlotte Tolley or Ellie Moore                      Phone: 865-805-8687 
 
Address:  625 Market St, Ste 801, Knoxville, TN 37902 
 
Email: info@nourishknoxville.org or ellie@nourishknoxville.org 
 
 
Event description: For more than two decades, the Market Square Farmers Market has stood as a 

beacon of community vitality in Knoxville. As a producer-only, open-air market, it embodies the 

quintessence of what a farmers market should be – a vibrant marketplace for local farmers, a vital hub 

of local commerce, and a welcoming space for all members of the community. 

 

From its humble beginnings with just five vendors who could fit on the Market Square Stage, the Market 

Square Farmers Market has evolved into a bustling marketplace boasting over 100 vendors during peak 

season. It has become a cherished landmark embraced by both Knoxville residents and visitors alike. Its 

tenure and steady track record of sustainable growth serve as a testament to the power of local food, 

community, and culture. It's a legacy we eagerly embrace, poised to continue for years to come, 

enriching the vibrant tapestry of life in downtown Knoxville. 

 

Additional sponsors: Grayson Subaru will be the 2024 presenting sponsor of the Market Square Farmers 

Market. We will also have sponsorship opportunities for Nourish Kids (monthly children’s activity hosted 

at the Saturday market), Nourish Moves (weekly walking incentive program hosted at the Wednesday 

market), and Double Up Food Bucks (SNAP doubling program available at all markets) programs at the 

MSFM that have yet to be solidified. 



 

 

 

Planned use of funds requested: The funds requested will primarily be allocated towards crucial areas 

of our market operations that are instrumental in driving our mission forward. 

 

First and foremost, a significant portion of the funds will go towards covering our staff costs. Investing in 

our team members is paramount to us, as they are the backbone of our organization. By providing 

competitive compensation and opportunities for professional development, we aim to foster a 

dedicated and motivated workforce. This investment not only ensures talent retention but also 

enhances productivity and efficiency, ultimately leading to a better Market Square Farmers Market. 

 

Additionally, part of the sponsorship funds will be used to purchase essential supplies and on-site 

signage. These resources are vital for maintaining our operations at optimal levels. Whether it's 

acquiring necessary equipment or enhancing our physical presence with impactful signage, these 

investments are integral to our day-to-day functionality and overall brand visibility. 

 

By supporting us in these areas, your sponsorship will directly contribute to our ability to fulfill our 

mission effectively and make a meaningful impact in our community. 

 

What is the projected attendance for this event? How will actual attendance be measured? Describe 

the demographics of anticipated attendees: Based on historical data from the 2023 season and prior, 

we can provide projections for the 2024 event attendance. The total attendance for the 2023 season 

was 20,300 with a Wednesday daily average of 700, and a Saturday season total of 116,450 with a 

Saturday daily average of 4,016. We are aiming for a 15% increase in attendance in 2024. 

 

To measure actual attendance, we employ a systematic approach using volunteers who conduct crowd 

counts every 30 minutes in two designated zones. Each volunteer utilizes hand-held click counters to 

tally the number of individuals within their assigned zone. Following each count, the total numbers for 

each zone are documented on a tracking sheet at the Market. Subsequently, this information is 

transferred to an Excel spreadsheet. 

 

Regarding the demographics of anticipated attendees, we expect a diverse range of guests spanning 

various age groups, backgrounds, and interests. Historically, the Market Square Farmers Market has 

attracted individuals from both local communities and surrounding areas, including families, young 

professionals, retirees, and tourists. While specific demographic breakdowns may vary, our overarching 

goal is to provide an enriching experience that resonates with attendees of all backgrounds, ultimately 

contributing to the overall success of the market and the vibrancy of downtown Knoxville. 



 

 

 
 
What opportunities, if any, will be provided for downtown merchants to participate? We are deeply 

committed to fostering collaboration and engagement within our local community, and we welcome the 

involvement of downtown businesses in various capacities. 

 

Several downtown merchants have already been integral to our operations. Nothing Too Fancy prints all 

of our merchandise and Rala stocks our merchandise, while three downtown business owners, including 

Brian Strutz of A Dopo Pizzeria, Stuart Cassell of the Stuart I. Cassell Firm, and Dimpal Patel, a partner in 

Embassy Suites, serve on our board. Additionally, downtown merchants Flour/Tomato Head, Cruze 

Farm, Good Golly Tamale, Paris Woodhull Designs, and Old City Java have all participated as vendors in 

our Market Square Farmers Market. 

 

We also have a strong relationship with downtown restaurants, many of which frequent our market for 

fresh ingredients on a weekly basis. Notable establishments include JC Holdway, Osteria Stella, Emilia, 

Oliver Royale, Kaizen, A Dopo Pizzeria, and Potchke. In 2023 we launched our 20 for 20 Restaurant Week 

celebrating National Farmers Market Week and our 20th season of the MSFM with specials from local 

food establishments across Knoxville. Emilia, Good Golly Tamale, Brother Wolf, PostModern Spirits, and 

K Brew were just some of the downtown businesses that created specials featuring local ingredients, 

donating a portion of the proceeds to Nourish Knoxville. We intend for this restaurant week to be an 

annual event and will be rebranding for 2024 and reaching out to food establishments in the spring to 

sign up. 

 

Moreover, we have successfully expanded our Nourish Moves program, which incentivizes downtown 

employees, residents, and visitors to explore downtown Knoxville by offering a walking incentive 

program. This initiative has seen significant participation and has proven to be a mutually beneficial 

endeavor for our market and downtown employees. 

 

Moving forward, we are open to exploring additional ways for downtown merchants to get involved, 

whether through vendor opportunities, collaborative marketing initiatives, or other mutually beneficial 

partnerships. We value the contributions of our local businesses and look forward to furthering our 

collaboration within the downtown community. 

 

How will this event positively impact downtown? The Market Square Farmers Market holds a pivotal 

role in shaping the downtown Knoxville experience, positively impacting both residents and businesses 



 

 

alike. The Market Square Farmers Market is not just a place to shop for fresh, locally grown produce, it's 

a vibrant community hub that fosters a sense of belonging and pride in our city. 

 

Over our 20+ year history, we have consistently been cited as a driving force behind the decision of 

many individuals to live or work in downtown Knoxville. Customers and business owners alike attribute 

our market and the local food scene as key factors in their choice to be part of this dynamic community. 

Our presence adds to the allure of downtown, drawing visitors and shoppers into the heart of Market 

Square. 

 

The demand for our return to Market Square following our move in 2020 underscores our integral role 

in the downtown landscape. Business owners and residents eagerly anticipate our market's presence, 

recognizing its contribution to the vitality and appeal of downtown Knoxville. 

 

Beyond being a marketplace, we serve as a gathering place where people come together to connect, 

exchange ideas, and celebrate community. Through initiatives like SNAP acceptance, Double Up Food 

Bucks, Nourish Moves, and Nourish Kids, we strive to promote healthier eating habits and increase 

access to nutritious options for all residents. By providing local farmers with a platform to showcase 

their products, we support economic growth and sustainability in East Tennessee. 

 

In essence, the Market Square Farmers Market enriches the downtown experience by nurturing a 

vibrant local food culture, fostering community connections, and promoting the overall well-being of 

our city. We are committed to continuing our mission of creating a thriving, inclusive marketplace that 

benefits both our residents and the local economy. 

 

What effect would lack of Downtown Knoxville Alliance funding have on this event? Without the 

crucial funding from the Downtown Knoxville Alliance, the Market Square Farmers Market would suffer 

significant setbacks, particularly in maintaining and supporting our staff. As a small nonprofit 

organization, our team members are essential to our mission's success. Lack of funding would jeopardize 

our ability to provide competitive compensation and opportunities for professional development, 

making it challenging to retain our dedicated workforce. The time and resources required to replenish 

staff diverts attention and resources away from programming, directly impacting the quality of the 

Market Square Farmers Market, ultimately diminishing our impact within the community. Thus, DKA’s 

support is not only instrumental in providing essential supplies and enhancing brand visibility but also in 

ensuring the stability and effectiveness of our organization by enabling us to retain our valuable staff 

members. 

 



Market Square Farmers Market

Note: Sponsorship total in all 
years except 2024 includes DKA Projected

2021 2022 2023 2024
Income

Booth and App Fees $71,125 $126,050 $143,900 $144,000
Donations $20 $260 $270 $200
Grant Income $1,154 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
Sponsorships $26,000 $28,100 $27,425 $23,100
Merchandise Sales $5,907 $5,605 $21,287 $5,000
Market Money Fee $690 $1,000 $900 $900

Total Income $104,896 $162,515 $195,282 $174,700

Expense
Contract Services

Accounting Fees $4,262 $4,500 $4,500 $5,000
Legal Fees $960 $200 $20 $20

Total Contract Services $5,222 $4,700 $4,520 $5,020
Insurance $2,393 $1,807 $2,182 $2,200
Merchandise $2,600 $3,600 $2,000
Merchant Account Fees $1,879 $3,023 $3,200 $3,300
Farm Inspections $284 $368 $487 $500
SNAP Expenses $1,382 $1,400 $251 $250
Vendor Meeting and Education $0 $0 $150 $300
Volunteer Program $654 $658 $30 $100
Operations

Advertising/Marketing $773 $827 $318 $400
Branding/Website
Membership & Organization Fees $214 $250 $350 $350
Port-a-johns/Handwashing station $2,580 $4,480 $4,200 $4,400
Postage, Mailing Service $200
Rent $9,900 $17,690 $24,000 $24,000
Security $8,790 $11,500 $16,438 $18,741
Software $5,008 $4,885 $5,100 $5,000
Supplies $2,459 $3,901 $5,645 $5,000
Telephone, Telecommunications $2,936 $3,969 $4,472 $4,500

Total Operations $32,860 $47,501 $60,523 $62,391
Payroll & Benefit Expenses $98,554 $91,889 $110,964 $116,500
Travel and Meetings $308 $300 $300 $300

Total Expense $142,882 $154,246 $186,177 $192,761

Net Profit/Loss -$37,986 $8,269 $9,105 -$18,061



2024 Market Square Farmers Market Marke1ng Plan 
 
Introduc1on: Nourish Knoxville is dedicated to cul3va3ng community and suppor3ng local food 
systems through the opera3on of the Market Square Farmers Market. Building upon our 
successful marke3ng strategies from 2023, we have built a plan to align with this year's key 
marke3ng objec3ves: educa3on about convenient downtown parking, promo3on of rain-or-
shine shopping, and the City of Knoxville's compos3ng ini3a3ve, with an aim to achieve a 15% 
increase in aNendance in 2024. 
 
Our target audience encompasses local residents seeking fresh produce, discerning tourists 
eager to explore Knoxville's dynamic culinary landscape, and environmentally-conscious 
consumers keen on suppor3ng compos3ng endeavors. Through enhanced marke3ng efforts, 
our goal is not only to aNract patrons to our market but also to enhance the vitality of 
downtown businesses. 
 

1. Social Media Engagement: 
a. Leveraging our strong social media presence, we will con3nue to engage our 

audience through plaTorms like Instagram and Facebook. 
b. In addi3on to regular posts, we will introduce targeted campaigns highligh3ng 

the convenience of downtown parking op3ons, poin3ng to the DKA online 
parking resource; promote the market as a rain-or-shine des3na3on, ensuring 
patrons feel encouraged to shop regardless of weather condi3ons; and educate 
patrons on the benefits and convenience of compos3ng with the Knoxville 
Compost Project. 
 

2. Strategic Partnerships: 
a. Collabora3ng with the City of Knoxville's Office of Sustainability, we will educate 

patrons on the Knoxville Compost Project at the Market Square Farmers Market 
and beyond as well as other sustainable shopping prac3ces including the 
environmental benefits of shopping locally. 

b. Working closely with esteemed collaborators such as the Knox County Health 
Department, Community Ac3on CommiNee, senior centers, and various 
nonprofits, we will amplify our efforts to encourage community members to visit 
the Market Square Farmers Market. This collabora3on extends to promo3ng our 
free walking incen3ve program, Nourish Moves, offered at the Wednesday 
Market Square Farmers Market. Furthermore, we will ac3vely engage with the 
East TN Wellness Roundtable and reach out to WIC and SNAP clients to ensure 
broader access to our markets and programs. 

c. Engaging with local media, we will coordinate press releases and live broadcasts 
to generate excitement around our market events and ini3a3ves. 

d. Collabora3ng with partner organiza3ons across 31 coun3es, we produce the East 
TN Local Food Guide, featuring the Market Square Farmers Market as well as 
other downtown grocers and restaurants who source locally, prominently. 
Distributed at no cost, this publica3on reaches diverse loca3ons such as grocers, 



restaurants, municipal buildings, healthcare providers, events, and more, 
effec3vely promo3ng the market and its programs to Knox and surrounding 
coun3es, driving foot traffic to downtown Knoxville. 
 

3. Enhanced Signage and Visibility: 
a. Leveraging temporary, at-market displays, we will provide informa3on on parking 

availability, downtown maps and happenings, market hours and programs, and 
more. 

b. Through eye-catching, semi-permanent (May – November) pole banner signage, 
we will promote the market season and days of opera3on. 
 

4. Community Engagement: 
a. Expanding our outreach efforts, we will par3cipate in downtown events and 

fes3vals, offering interac3ve experiences and engaging with the local community. 
 

Conclusion: In conclusion, our marke3ng plan is designed to drive foot traffic to our market 
while contribu3ng to the vibrancy of downtown Knoxville. By focusing on downtown 
parking/accessibility, rain-or-shine shopping, and compos3ng ini3a3ves, we aim to create a 
holis3c approach that benefits both our market and the broader downtown community. 
Through strategic partnerships, enhanced visibility, and community engagement, we are 
confident in our ability to achieve our marke3ng objec3ves and foster a sense of connec3on 
within our community. 



⋅ Sponsored events should include the Downtown Knoxville Alliance as a sponsor in all
pre-event publicity, marketing materials, websites, posters, and event materials.
Information on downtown parking should also be included.

⋅ A post-event evaluation is required within 45 days of the event. Payments will be made in
two parts. One-half will be paid prior to the event and the balance will be paid upon
receipt of the completed post-event evaluation. Refunds will be requested for any events
that are cancelled. Final payment will be forfeited if post-event evaluation is not received.

Completed applications should be emailed to rthomas@downtownknoxville.org, mailed or
delivered to Downtown Knoxville Alliance, Attn: Robin Thomas, 17 Market Square, Knoxville, TN
37902. For questions, call 865.246.2653.

Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Sponsorship Request Application

Event: Rhinestone Fest 2024

Date(s): June 7 - 8, 2024

Location: Various, Historic Old City; Main Stage & Old City Market events on Jackson Avenue,
between State Street and S Central

Produced by: Historic Old City Association

Sponsorship amount requested: $5K

Event History:

____ First-time event (#) __4__ prior years (#) __2__ years of previous Alliance
funding

Contact: Molly King Phone: (510) 717-3759

Address: ℅ Old City Association, 132 West Jackson Avenue, Knoxville, TN 37902

Email: molly@mollyjoevents.com

Event description:

The Old City Association announces its 4th annual Dolly-themed festival taking place the
weekend of June 8th. “Rhinestone Fest, for the Love of Dolly!” benefits The Historic Old City
Association. (oldcityknoxville.org)

Rhinestone Fest will take place on June 7th and 8th at various locations in and around the Old
City. Events will commence Friday in conjunction with other First Friday activities, and will

09/22



continue on Saturday, with a Main Stage event featuring Dolly impersonators, costume
contests, and other performances and activities, local food trucks, and a Rhinestone Market
with local artists and craft vendors, curated by the Old City Market.
Rhinestone Fest is a family-friendly event, and free to attend.

Due to the success of the Dolly Art Contest, started at Rala in 2019, Rhinestone Fest was
created to celebrate all things Dolly and to invite people to experience our unique and vibrant
Old City community. Rhinestone Fest has something for everyone! Guests can expect First
Friday activities to include art shows, live music, and Dolly movie screenings at various
locations in and around the Old City. Saturday’s Main Stage event, taking place on W Jackson
Avenue, will feature live music, as well as interactive activities such as a Dolly costume
contest, Dolly-themed trivia, Dolly stand-up comedy, and other local performers. Sunday’s
special-edition Rhinestone Market on W Jackson Avenue will highlight local and regional
artists and makers displaying their Dolly themed creations. Restaurants, bars, and retail shops
will feature specials throughout the weekend. A calendar and map of events will be available
via the Rhinestone Fest website.

Rhinestone Fest 2024 is produced in collaboration with Rala, Molly Jo Events, and Robin
Easter Design.

This event is not affiliated with Dolly Parton, Dolly Parton Enterprises, Dollywood or The
Dollywood Foundation. Dolly Parton will not be at this event.

Additional sponsors:

We are still in the process of soliciting sponsorships, and will be happy to share updates as we
secure additional funding. Current sponsors include Club XYZ; Rala; The Daniel; Nancy Voith
and Kenneth Stark; and S2A Integration.

Planned use of funds requested:

Event infrastructure, marketing and advertising, entertainment booking

Sponsorship funding supports event costs, and allows use of OCA funding to be channeled
back into the neighborhood for ongoing projects including safety and security; beautification;
neighborhood programming; and quality of life.

What is the projected attendance for this event? How will actual attendance be measured?
Describe the demographics of anticipated attendees.

Since we are a free event with so many sub-events and activities, it is difficult to assess total
attendance throughout the weekend, but we have, historically, seen some of the busiest
weekends on record. We have surveyed neighborhood businesses ipost-festival, and learned
that most businesses reported record guests and sales. The special edition Old City Market
estimated twice as many attendees as the already-popular monthly markets.

Continuing in the spirit of Dolly loving everyone, we believe Rhinestone Fest has something
for everyone! We expect a wide range of demographics – art lovers, music enthusiasts,



history buffs, Old City and Downtown residents, families with children, food lovers,
bar-hoppers, and window shoppers – everyone will find something at Rhinestone Fest!

2022 and 2023 saw many out of town visitors including neighbors from all over Tennessee, as
well as North Carolina, Kentucky, and Virginia. We heard from Cincinnati, multiple towns in
Texas, and even California. We’ve heard from two guests already who plan to travel from
Canada in 2024.

What opportunities, if any, will be provided for downtown merchants to participate?

All businesses are encouraged to host a Dolly-, Appalachian-, country/folk- or other-themed
event, create Dolly-themed drink or food specials, and/or use the event to promote and
encourage patronage. Some examples from last year are musical performances, live art
demos, Dolly photo ops, Dolly costume contest, Dolly art, and weekend-long specials in bars
and restaurants. Event organizers will create various promotional materials that will highlight
these businesses and help promote their participation.

The influx of Dolly-lovin' folks to Rhinestone Fest should increase business for all those
participating. As previously-mentioned, many businesses reported record sales over the
course of the weekend.

How will this event positively impact downtown?

Rhinestone Fest is a fun-filled, dynamic, and broadly-appealing, bringing people to downtown
Knoxville to explore all it has to offer. Many people who have attended previous events have
never been downtown before. The event has the potential to bring out not only downtown
residents and neighbors, but also many out of town and out of state visitors that will stay in
our hotels, and eat, drink, and shop, which will result in increased revenue through sales tax
collected from Old City and surrounding businesses in the greater Downtown area.

Additionally, Rhinestone Fest honors Knoxville’s long and rich tradition of hosting unique and
engaging community events, and provides an additional resource for the art, music, history,
and culture our City is known for.

What effect would lack of Downtown Knoxville Alliance funding have on this event?

Without DKA funding, the financial responsibility of hosting this event will fall to the very
businesses and organizations it hopes to promote and support. A strong history of generosity
and participation among local businesses ensures that we are always able to have successful
events, but this additional funding will not only defray some of the financial burden on the
OCA and it’s businesses – the very businesses that generate tax revenue for DKA. We believe
the OCA’s efforts support all of Knoxville by encouraging visitors and patrons to all areas of
Downtown.

Attach the following:

Projected budget, including detailed income and expenses
-Enclosed



Event Name Rhinestone Fest in the Old City

Event Date June 7 - 8, 2024

Event Location Various - Old City

Guest Count TBD

Event Start 4 p.m., Friday, June 7

Event End 7:00 p.m. Saturday, June 8

Service Style Various community activities; Main Stage music and activities; special OC Market

Load-In/Load-Out Info TBD

Infrastructure $ # Total

Main Stage Rentals $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 Modular Stage, Delivery & Install; Tables & Chairs; Linens

Vancie Vega Rider $500.00 1 $500.00 Meet & Greet Tent; Refreshments

Porta-Potties $500.00 1 $500.00

Generator - CoK $350.00 1 $350.00

Sound $750.00 1 $750.00

Subtotal

$3,100.00

City Services $ # Total

Street Closure $0.00 1 $0.00 City of Knoxville

Waste Management $0.00 1 $0.00 City of Knoxville

KPD $575.00 2 $1,150.00

EMS $280.00 2 $560.00

Subtotal

$1,710.00

Staffing $ # Total # Hours

Set-Up & Staging $30.00 3 $1,080.00 12

Market Director $530.00 1 $530.00 1

Production Assistant $750.00 1 $750.00 1 Hayden

Subtotal

$2,360.00

Production Services $ # Total

Vancie Vega $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00

Laurie Lynn $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00

Knox Honkers & Bangers $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00

Big Dolly $900.00 1 $900.00

Emcee $500.00 1 $500.00

Photography $500.00 1 $500.00

Marketing/Social Media Management $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00

Merchandise Cost $4,500.00 1 $4,500.00

Staging & Incidentals $0.00 1 $0.00 TBD

Green Room $125.00 1 $125.00

Event Insurance $350.00 1 $350.00

Subtotal

$12,875.00

Sub Total

$20,045.00

Planning Fee

$500.00 10 $5,000.00

Fundraising Fee

$1,500.00 Equal to 15% of Fundraising totals

Tax

501c3 Tax-Exempt $0.00

Totals

Total Cost $25,045.00

Revenue Streams $ # Total

Merch Sales -$8,500.00 1 -$8,500.00

Sponsorships -$20,000.00 1 -$10,000.00

Market Booth Fees -$75.00 30 -$2,250.00

Participant Donations -$4,000.00 1 -$4,000.00

$0.00

Subtotal

-$24,750.00

Sub Total

$1,795.00

Cost Offset

Event Total $25,045.00

Revenue Total -$24,750.00

Offset Total $295.00



Event Name Rhinestone Fest in the Old City

Event Date June 2,3,4, 2022

Event Location Various - Old City

Guest Count TBD

Event Start 4 p.m., Friday, June 2

Event End 5 p.m., Sunday, June 4

Service Style Various community activities; Main Stage music festival; special OC Market

Load-In/Load-Out Info TBD

Infrastructure $ # Total

Main Stage Rentals $3,967.93 1 $3,967.93 Modular Stage, Delivery & Install

Stage $1,650.00 1 $1,650.00 Green Room, Backstage, Utility, etc.

Porta-Potties $500.00 1 $500.00

Generator - CoK $350.00 1 $350.00

Sound $2,650.00 1 $2,650.00

Subtotal

$9,117.93

City Services $ # Total

Street Closure $0.00 1 $0.00 City of Knoxville

Waste Management $0.00 1 $0.00 City of Knoxville

KPD $575.00 2 $1,150.00

EMS $280.00 2 $560.00

Subtotal

$1,710.00

Staffing $ # Total # Hours

Set-Up & Staging $30.00 1 $360.00 12

Market Director $530.00 1 $530.00 1

Market Security $760.00 1 $760.00 1

Production Assistant $750.00 1 $750.00 1 Hayden

Subtotal

$2,400.00

Production Services $ # Total

Music Booking $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00

Other Entertainment $650.00 1 $650.00

Market Music $300.00 1 $300.00

Photography $500.00 1 $500.00

Marketing/Social Media Management $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00

Merchandise Cost $4,500.00 1 $4,500.00

Staging & Incidentals $0.00 1 $0.00

Green Room $114.05 1 $114.05

Event Insurance $333.00 1 $333.00

Subtotal

$14,397.05

Sub Total

$27,624.98

Planning Fee

$4,500.00

Tax

501c3 Tax-Exempt $0.00

Totals

Total Cost $32,124.98

Revenue Streams $ # Total

Merch Sales -$8,247.95 1 -$8,247.95

Sponsorships -$18,750.00 1 -$18,750.00

Market Booth Fees -$75.00 30 -$2,250.00

Participant Donations $0.00

$0.00

Subtotal

-$29,247.95

Sub Total

$2,877.03

Cost Offset

Event Total $32,124.98

Revenue Total -$29,247.95

Offset Total $2,877.03



Event Name DollyFest in the Old City

Event Date June 3, 4, 5, 2022

Event Location Various - Old City

Guest Count TBD

Event Start 4 p.m., Friday, June 3

Event End 5 p.m., Sunday, June 5

Service Style Various community activities; Main Stage music festival; special OC Market

Load-In/Load-Out Info TBD

Infrastructure $ # Total

AOPR - Main Stage Rentals $5,335.30 1 $5,335.30

AOPR - GR, VIP, Booths $765.25 1 $765.25

Porta-Potties $1,100.00 1 $1,100.00

Sound - Springboard A/V $2,650.00 1 $2,650.00 ESTIMATE

$0.00

Subtotal

$9,850.55

City Services $ # Total

Street Closure $0.00 1 $0.00

Waste Management $0.00 1 $0.00 City of Knoxville

KPD $320.00 2 $640.00

EMS $280.00 2 $560.00

Subtotal

$1,200.00

Staffing $ # Total # Hours

Set-Up & Staging $25.00 2 $500.00 10

Private Security $720.00 1 $720.00 1

Market Director $530.00 1 $530.00 1

Market Security $760.00 1 $760.00 1

Production Assistant $500.00 1 $500.00 1 Hayden

Subtotal

$3,010.00

Production Services $ # Total

Music Booking - HH Creative $4,250.00 1 $4,250.00

Market Music $100.00 1 $100.00

Photography $500.00 1 $500.00

Merchandise Cost $4,282.00 1 $4,282.00

Staging & Incidentals $820.00 1 $820.00

Instacart $137.77 1 $137.77

Instacart $65.69 1 $65.69

Event Insurance $290.00 1 $290.00

Subtotal

$10,445.46

Sub Total

$24,506.01

Planning Fee

$4,901.20

Nonprofit Discount $3,401.20

Planning Fee $1,500.00

Tax

501c3 Tax-Exempt $0.00

Totals

Total Cost $29,407.21

Revenue Streams $ # Total

Merch Sales -$9,880.00 1 -$9,880.00

Sponsorships -$17,850.00 1 -$17,850.00

Market Booth Fees -$1,800.00 1 -$1,800.00

Subtotal

-$29,530.00

Sub Total

-$25,991.03

Cost Offset

Event Total $29,407.21

Revenue Total -$29,530.00

Offset Total -$122.79



Rhinestone Fest in the Old City
Preliminary Marketing Strategy presented to Downtown Knoxville Alliance
Contact:
Molly King, Molly Jo Events
molly@mollyjoevents.com
510-717-3759
rhinestonefest@gmail.com
https://www.instagram.com/rhinestonefest/
https://oldcityknoxville.org/rhinestonefest/

Summary
Rhinestone Fest is a free, family-friendly, community event celebrating all things Dolly!
Rhinestone Fest 2024 will commence on Friday, June 7th, and include neighborhood
activities in conjunction with First Friday ArtWalk. Various activities in and around the Old
City will continue Saturday, with a Main Stage event including Dolly impersonators,
costume contests for adults, kids, and pets; Dolly-themed trivia with prizes, performances
by Cattywampus and associates; and other performances planned, as well as local food
vendors. The Old City Market will host a special Dolly-themed market highlighting local
artists and vendors.

The primary goal of Rhinestone Fest is to connect our Old City community to a larger
regional and local audience, while promoting and supporting local businesses and
organizations through themed activities and promotions. Based on the success of past
events, we expect to draw thousands of guests to the Old City and Downtown Knoxville
in 2024. Proceeds from Rhinestone Fest will benefit the Historic Old City Association.

Initiatives

All businesses are encouraged to host a Dolly event, create Dolly-themed drink or food
specials, and/or use the event to promote and encourage patronage. Some examples
from prior years are musical performances, Appalachian history education, East
Tennessee music history education, screening Dolly movies, Dolly photo ops, Dolly
costume contest, Dolly art, and Festival specials in bars and restaurants. Event
organizers will create various promotional materials that will highlight these businesses
and help promote their participation. (see enclosed 2023 materials.)

Rhinestone Fest also supports and promotes local musicians and artists through
sponsoring live music and the Old City Market, as well as encouraging patronage of



businesses who are hosting artists and musicians. Live performances take place in
various venues in and around the Old City, and Dolly-themed art shows hang in many
local businesses. Based on the success of past events, we expect that these events and
shows will increase in both number and popularity in 2024.

Rhinestone Fest will benefit all Old City, Downtown, and surrounding businesses by
drawing both local and out-of-town guests, including many overnight stays. Increased
revenues during this weekend are almost certainly guaranteed, and there is high
expectation of many visitors seeing and exploring Downtown Knoxville for the first time.
As mentioned in our application, we’ve had inquiries from all over the Southeast, and as
far away as Colorado and California, and even Canada!

Target Market

Local Businesses
● Encourage local businesses, venues, and organizations to participate in
Rhinestone Fest activities
● Promote activities through live events, social media, and printed materials.
● Cross-promotion from participating businesses
● Guaranteed increased patronage
● Over 30 Old City businesses participated in DollyFest activities in 2023, and we
are expecting at least half again that in 2024. The OCA has expanded its
boundaries to include more neighboring businesses, and we have already been
contacted by multiple businesses outside our boundaries who want to participate,
as well. Individual businesses are encouraged to share/promote through their
own channels in addition to Event Sponsor efforts
● Testimonials from 2023 included confirmations of “biggest weekend in history”
and “bigger than Big Ears weekend”

Guests/Visitors

● Promote activities through live events, social media, and printed materials.
● Guests will dine in our restaurants, shop in our boutiques, stay in our hotels, and
visit our local attractions
● Based on 2023 numbers, with a Facebook event page recording almost 15,000
people “going” or “interested” we expect thousands of visitors through the course
of the weekend. We will encourage #rhinestonefest use on social media, and have



contracted Aw, Snap Media to manage our social pages. The Rhinestone Fest and Old
City Knoxville event pages have a combined following of over 15K.

Sponsors

● Highlight Sponsors via live events, social media, and printed materials
● Sponsorships will allow for greater support of the community and the benefiting
organizations
● Even prior to active solicitation, we have been approached by several local
businesses with both in-kind donations and cash donations totaling approximately
$7,500. We believe that local businesses perceive this as a valuable asset to the
community, as well as a great cause to support
● Our target Sponsorship goal is $20,000. We are actively soliciting additional
sponsorships.

Budget

Marketing budget is still preliminary, and will include (but not be limited to) the following
efforts:
● Sponsored social media posts and promotions
● Printed materials such as posters, maps, flyers
● Interactive website for visitors, participating businesses, and sponsors
● A street banner to be displayed across S Central (permit application submitted to
City of Knoxville)
● WUTK live stream (pending)
● WDVX PSA and request for additional partnership/activities
● Cross-promotion with participating businesses hosting events, activities, and specials.

Marketing Channels

Over the course of the next 3 months, we will utilize the following channels for promoting
the festival, engaging with visitors, soliciting sponsorships and business participation, and
creating awareness around the Old City and Downtown Knoxville.

● Rhinestone Fest Website
○ Promote and provide information about the festival, FAQs, visitor
information, calendar of events

● Old City Association



○Website will link event
○ Promote via social media and during monthly neighborhood meetings

● Instagram
● Facebook

○ Old City Association, with over 6,000 followers, will create the Event Page and
assist in promotion

● Printed & Digital Materials
○ Robin Easter Design has created branded marketing materials including
posters, flyers, schedule of events, and images for social media content, as
well as all branding for merchandise

● Musicians & Artists
○ Encouraged to promote their individual shows/concerts/market booths
through any effective channels

● Participating businesses
○ Encouraged to promote their individual shows/concerts/activities/specials
through any effective channels

● Local Event Calendars
○ City of Knoxville
○ Visit Knoxville
○ VIP Knoxville
○ Inside of Knoxville
○ EventCheck Knox
○ Others

● Press & Media
○ A press kit will be sent to local television and radio, as well as bloggers and
influencers



QUALITY OF LIFE COMMITTEE  
  MINUTES 

MARCH 11, 2024, 11:30 AM 
 
The Quality-of-Life Committee for Downtown Knoxville Alliance met on Monday, March 11, 2024 
at 11:30 at Market Square.   Members present included committee chair - Lorie Matthews, Nikki 
Elliott, Vince Fusco, and Brian Pittman. Staff included: Michele Hummel.  
 
Knoxville Music Literary Guide Request 
 
Paul James with Knoxville History Project (KHP) presented a request for the Knoxville Walking 
Music Guide.  The guide is a companion to the literary guide DKA sponsored last year.  The guide 
will increase awareness and appreciation for the city's rich musical heritage. 
 
Recommendation:  The committee made a recommendation in the form of a motion to the board to 
fund the guide for $5,000.  The committee also recommended that KHP enhance its guide on the 
website to include an auditory component and other features to allow it to become more 
interactive.  In addition, it was suggested that they add a QR code to allow the guides to be utilized 
and marketed to more people. 
 
Pet Waste Dispenser Request 
 
Conservation Cooperative presented its annual request for assistance with the dog waste bag 
dispensary program.  The committee made a few suggestions as to several additional locations, 
which include near Marble Alley/valet parking for the Embassy, Church/State, and near the 
downtown fire station/Cheaspeakes.   
 
Recommendation:  A motion was made in the form of a motion to fund the program at $3,500. 
 
Budget Discussion 
 
The committee discussed potential projects to be considered for next year's budget: 

• Pairing dog waste bag dispensers and trash together, with the goal of having something on 
each corner of downtown or block. 

• Addressing the trash/dirtiness on the streets/sidewalks on the outskirts of downtown.  
Market Square and Gay Street look good but less frequented streets need trash picked up 
regularly. 

• Beautification/art projects on the barriers for new projects downtown (i.e. allowing people 
to paint plywood on barriers.  DKA could provide the plywood and developers could install 
the boards) 

 
Long-term idea include: 

• Investigate the idea of closing Market Street to a pedestrian thoroughfare. 
 

General Committee discussion 
 
Committee discussed: 
 Update on the Ambassador Program 
 Off-duty additional security 
 Security Cameras 
 
With no other business, the meeting was adjourned. 



 Budget 
 Year-to-

Date 
Actuals 

 Requested Remaining

BUDGET  

Security 100,000$    64,841$       -$             35,159$        

Ambassador 117,000$     77,411$        -$             39,589$       

Beautification 90,000$      
Planters 155$             
Design Srvs/Artists Mockups   
Beautification/Holiday 8,435$         
Mardi Grawl Clean-up  
Art in Public Places   
Artist Alley   
Conservation (Pet Waste Project)  3,500$         
Downtown History Lit. Project  5,000$        
KUB/Strong Alley Lighting 676$            

90,000$      9,266$         8,500$         72,234$        

Special Art Project 50,000$      -$             -$             50,000$      

Residents 3,000$        3,000$         

 TOTAL 360,000$   151,518$       8,500$          199,982$      

 

Quality of Life Budget FY 23-24

FY 23-24 Budget



 
QUALITY OF LIFE 

  APPLICATION 
 
 
 

APPLICATION 
 
Name:    Knoxville History Project      
 
Your Mailing Address:  123 S. Gay Street, Suite C, Knoxville, TN 37902   
 
Phone Number: 865-3337-7723  Email Address: paul@knoxhistoryproject.org 
Project Address:  Primarily downtown area       
 
Requested Amount:  $3,000    Total Project Costs:      
  
1. Describe the project:  

Overview: The Knoxville History Project, a nonprofit organization with a mission to research, preserve, 
and promote the history and culture of the city, respectfully requests a sponsorship contribution of 
$3,000 to help fund the research and production of “Knoxville: A Walking Music Guide” –a new printed 
tour booklet to increase awareness and appreciation for the city’s rich musical heritage, and to reprint 
the highly popular “Knoxville: A Literary Walking Guide” that was produced in 2022 and has been 
distributed to almost 6,000 people. 

The proposed 36-page music guide booklet (designed to be a companion volume to the literary guide) 
aims to increase awareness and appreciation for the city’s rich musical heritage by emphasizing 
downtown sites associated with songwriters, composers and musicians well-known enough to be 
recognizable by the American music-listening public. The free guide will also provide residents and 
visitors with a handy introduction to the Knoxville-centric work of these authors. 

Researched and written by renowned historian Jack Neely, using descriptions and short biographies, this 
illustrated guide will offer a gateway to Knoxville’s music heritage and to the city’s appeal. 

The planned print run for this booklet is 6,000 copies that will be distributed by the Knoxville History 
Project, Knox County Public Library, East Tennessee History Center, Visit Knoxville, Big Ears Festival, and 
other community partners. 

An online version will also be made available through KHP’s website. 
 
The music guide, highlighting local sites associated with the lives and careers of well-known and 
influential musicians, will mainly be centered around downtown with some outliers such as Chilhowee 
park, notable for hosting early Black rock and roll performers. Examples of downtown sites and 
musicians include the following: 

The Southern Railway Station on Depot Street was crowded from the day it opened in 1903 and 
attracted street musicians like singer-songwriter Charlie Oaks, a blind guitarist who sang his ballads of 
tragedy for nickels. One of his best-known songs was "Southern Railroad Wreck" about the New Market 
Train Wreck of 1904. It was known as a printed ballad before a shorter version was recorded in New 



 

 
York, about 20 years later, by another Knoxville street performer, George Reneau. Some historians have 
suggested Oaks was America’s first professional country musician. 

The site of the former St. James Hotel on Wall Avenue highlights Knoxville’s deep and dynamic heritage 
in the development of American popular music. In 1929 and 1930, the Brunswick Record Company 
recorded sessions in a makeshift studio set up in the hotel lobby. They recorded bands including the 
Tennessee Ramblers, Tennessee Chocolate Drops, and Leola Manning, whose song “Satan is Busy in 
Knoxville” is the central track in multiple compilations of St. James sessions recordings on the renowned 
Bear Family Record label.  

The third floor of the Holston Building on Gay Street, during the 1940s, was occupied by WROL Radio, 
which daily hosted live country music and the new form of bluegrass. Among the newcomers at WROL 
were Lester Flatt and Earl Scruggs, former members of Bill Monroe’s famous Bluegrass Boys where they 
recorded four singles that launched them onto the national stage. The duo may have done more than 
anyone to popularize bluegrass music.  

On the 100 block of Gay Street, is the former site of Knoxville's most popular radio station, WNOX, 
where between 1936 and 1954 fans would daily pack the small auditorium to watch the popular variety 
show, "Mid-Day Merry Go-Round" featuring all kinds of music, even classical and jazz. The show became 
known as a trying ground for country musicians, including Chet Atkins, Homer and Jethro, Kitty Wells, 
the Carter Sisters, Carl Butler, and Don Gibson. 

Frequently on this block in the 1930s was Arthur Q. Smith, a songwriter who signed away the rights to 
many of his best works, often for as little as the price of a beer. Among those who made hits of his songs 
were Hank Williams, Ernest Tubb, Bill Monroe, and Dolly Parton. Smith, who lived in an apartment on 
nearby West Vine spent many hours at the Three Feathers bar at the corner of Jackson Avenue. 

Located on the north end of Gay Street, during the 1950s and early ‘60s, was the headquarters of WIVK 
radio. Dolly Parton was a teenager from the foothills of the Smoky Mountains, but frequently came to 
Knoxville to perform on the radio. Her first solo broadcast was at WIVK, which accommodated a small 
studio audience for live shows. It was here, in the late 1950s, that Dolly "fell in love with her audience," 
as she would later recall it.  

Market Square, established as a farmer's market in 1854, has been a cultural center ever since, 
especially known for live music. In the 1800s, farmers would play fiddle to attract customers to their 
stalls. From 1897 to 1960, the iconic Market House’s auditorium often hosted live music. Fiddlers’ 
conventions became a regular event here, attracting well-known talent from out of town, such as 
Fiddling John Carson and Uncle Dave Macon. But jazz was no stranger here as in 1934, when bandleader 
Duke Ellington performed here with his orchestra.  

In the 1950s, record giant RCA considered Market Square, with its daily mixture of old and young, Black 
and white, to be a bellwether for national tastes—and took special interest in the summer of 1954 when 
a new record called "That's All Right," was a sales phenomenon here. Then unknown, Elvis Presley’s first 
record was suddenly selling in the thousands on Market Square and one reason why RCA later signed 
him on a major contract the following year. 

Knoxville is fortunate to have two historic theatres close to each other on Gay Street. Built in 1909, the 
Bijou Theatre is Tennessee's oldest secular auditorium, and has hosted live music from its opening 
night, a wide variety of entertainers from Will Rogers to John Phillip Sousa to Dizzy Gillespie. Chet Atkins 
has performed here, as has Pete Seeger, Doc Watson, Del McCurry, and many others.  

Built in 1928, the Tennessee Theatre opened as a sumptuous theater and brought in thousands daily to 
see new movies and musical performances. Roy Acuff played his first show before a seated audience 
here, in 1932, with a band called the Three Rolling Stones. In 1935, the Grand Ole Opry arrived for an 



 

 
unusual road performance, with the Opry's stars of the day, including Uncle Dave Macon and the 
Delmore Brothers. However, country music was rare here until the 1980s, when the old theater was 
reborn as a performing-arts center.  

The Tennessee has hosted some of country music's greats, from Steve Earle to Merle Haggard to the 
Everly Brothers. Johnny Cash performed one of his last full concerts here, and Chet Atkins, who had 
retired from live concerts, made one exception to play at the Tennessee in 1998. 

Overlooking the Tennessee River, the 17-story Andrew Johnson Hotel was the tallest building in East 
Tennessee when it opened in the late 1920s. By 1935, WNOX was hosting live shows there, featuring 
both jazz and the latest country-music phenomenon, Roy Acuff and his Crazy Tennesseans. The show 
was so popular that fans were jamming the elevators, making them unusable for patrons, and in 1936, 
the hotel in effect evicted country music. It saw the beginning of one career and the end of another. On 
the last day of 1952, a teenaged chauffeur arrived with a particularly famous boss, 29-year-old Hank 
Williams, the Alabama singer-songwriter on his way to concert dates to the north. Nearly every detail 
about that night is disputed, except for this one: before dawn on New Year's Day, 1953, Hank Williams 
was dead. It's unknown whether Williams knew the building where he spent the last evening of his life 
had a strong association with his hero, Roy Acuff. 

On the eastern fringe of downtown is the Civic Auditorium. Built in 1961 as part of an urban-renewal 
project, it was the first large performance venue to open in Knoxville without segregating audiences in 
regard to race. It has hosted perhaps most of the great performers of the 1960s and ‘70s, including the 
Rolling Stones, Stevie Wonder, Otis Redding, Mahalia Jackson, the original Beach Boys, Ray Charles, Bob 
Dylan, Johnny Cash, Dolly Parton, Bruce Springsteen, Neal Young, Joan Baez, Tom Waits, and James 
Brown. 

Out in east Knoxville, at Chilhowee Park, is the Jacob Building, where Knoxville first discovered rock and 
roll. In its early days, the tail end of big-band jazz, Chilhowee Park attracted Black and white acts and 
audiences evenly: Buddy Rich, Sammy Kaye, Cab Calloway, Tommy Dorsey and Count Basie all 
performed big shows there in the ‘40s. However, by the early ’50s, it was hosting mainly Black R&B—as 
the music was evolving into something slightly different. Over the next decade, the Jacob Building 
attracted dozens of artists who would later become revered as early pioneers of rock and roll – Fats 
Domino, Bo Diddley, and Chuck Berry. And it was here one night in 1957, at the time of the Clinton High 
School desegregation crisis, that a show by bandleader Louis Armstrong’s integrated band was 
interrupted by a bomb blast outside the venue. 

The University of Tennessee campus is also musically significant, both through its music students and 
faculty, like composer/conductor David Van Vactor, who led UT’s new Department of Fine Arts, but also 
via notable concerts on campus, especially at Alumni Memorial Auditorium, which served as Knoxville’s 
primary performing-arts center for about 30 years, featuring a broad array of performers from Jascha 
Heifetz to Nina Simone. Sergei Rachmaninoff famously performed his final piano concert there in 1943. 
Others who have performed on campus include Janis Joplin, Elvis Presley, Prince, Michael Jackson, in 
fact perhaps a majority of the major popular-music figures of the 20th century. 

Using the guide, readers will gain a deeper understanding of the city’s musical heritage, be able to 
identify key musicians and songwriters who have been active here, and be able to relate these stories to 
physical buildings and spaces throughout downtown and other local places.  

 

Major Activities Timeline for 2024: 

March - May   



 

 
• Begin to build upon existing research in KHP files to draft the historical narrative. 
• Conduct further research at the McClung Historical Collection, UT Libraries’ digital collections, 

and other online sources. 
• Undertake photographic research and take new photographs of key sites where needed. 

June-September  

• Continue research and develop a final draft. 
• Continue photographic research. 
• Commence initial design. 

 

October - December    

• Proofread and continue final edits to the historical narrative. 
• Complete booklet design.  
• Print the guide and begin distribution (the guide will be ready to serve audiences attending Big 

Ears Festival in 2025).  

 
 
 
 
2. If applicable, has the project been submitted and/or approved by the Downtown Design Review 

Board (D1) or the Historic Zoning Commission (H1)? ☐ Yes  ☐ No 

N/A 

 

3. Will you be receiving or asking for any financial incentives/assistance from other sources?   

KHP has already secured a grant of $10,000 from Aslan Foundation to help fund the new music guide. 
KHP will be seeking additional support from a number of sources and community organizations, 
including City of Knoxville 202 Funds, Friends of Knox County Public Library, Visit Knoxville, and other 
prospects to complete funding for the music guide and to reprint the Literary Guide.   

 
 

4. Anticipated state date:  03/01/2024  Anticipated completion: 12/31/2024 
 

 

5. Has this project received DKA funding in the past?  If so, when and amount? 

 

The Knoxville History Project received a contribution of $1,500 in 2022 to support the Knoxville Literary 
Guide, and $4,900 in 2019 to fund several installations in its Downtown Art Wraps initiative.  

We remain grateful for this funding from the Downtown Knoxville Alliance to help fund these projects.  

 

 



 

 
6. How does your project help enhance the CBID’s mission to make downtown a better place in which 

to live, work and play?  
 

KHP’s stories, programs, and publications educate and inform residents and visitors, helping them 
understand the city’s complicated and dynamic heritage, and appreciate the city’s culture. This applies 
for both local residents who live, work, and play in the immediate area as well as visitors to the city who 
may be seeking entertainment and/or maybe considering Knoxville has a place to live.   

Discovering the history of places, and exploring sites, buildings, and open spaces, whether in person or 
from the comfort of an armchair, can help residents and visitors develop a stronger connection and a 
deeper appreciation for those places that they may see and take for granted every day.  This project 
combines local history with music history, two subjects which are endlessly fascinating to people of all 
ages. 

Like literature, a city’s music history can often form a significant part of a city’s public persona. In 
America as in much of the world, the cities that matter are the ones that have attracted authors, 
songwriters and performers who use them as settings. Dozens of major cities offer tours or guides to 
newcomers interested in exploring literary and musical heritage. In some cases, visitors, as well as 
residents, may already be familiar with writers’ works, or, at least, have heard the names of certain 
writers and performers. That in of itself can offer a point of access to an otherwise unfamiliar city. In 
many cases, they find it interesting to see what famous writers and performers have written about the 
place they’re visiting, contrasting these often-timeless passages and songs with their own impressions. 

  
By emphasizing these and other unique historic buildings, sites, and the compelling literary stories 
surrounding them, these cultural tours add a further vibrant element to the downtown experience and 
enhance community pride through a more nuanced understanding of the city’s heritage and culture. 

 

APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
 
√☐ Provide application. 
 
√☐ Include project budget. 
 
√☐ Include renderings of the project.  
 
No application will be accepted unless all requested information is included. 
 
 
Return all application packages to: 

Michele Hummel 
Downtown Knoxville Alliance 
mhummel@downtownknoxville.org 

 
If you have any questions, please contact us at 865.246.2654 
 



KNOXVILLE HISTORY PROJECT GUIDES BUDGET

Knoxville Music Guide Expenses
Research, writing the narrative, editing, project coordination 4,000$                

Design (Robin Easter Design) 5,000$                

Printing (6,000 booklets based on Literary Guide costs) 7,000$                16,000$   

Knoxville Literary Guide Reprinting Expenses
Printing (5,000 booklets based on Literary Guide costs) 6,000$                6,000$      

TOTAL 22,000$   

Committed Funds To Date:
Aslan Foundation 10,000$   

Outstanding Fundraising Goal 12,000$   

Funder & Sponsor Prospects:
Visit Knoxville
Downtown Knoxville CBID
City of Knoxville 202 Funds
Friends of Knox County Public Library
and other companies, foundations and individual supporters



KNOXVILLE 
 A WALKING 
MUSIC GUIDE

The Knoxville History Project is seeking community support to fund research and production of
“Knoxville: A Walking Music Guide” to increase awareness and appreciation for the city’s rich
musical heritage.

The informative guide will emphasize Knoxville’s role in music history by highlighting downtown
sites associated with songwriters, composers and musicians well-known enough to be
recognizable by the American music-listening public. 

Researched and written by renowned historian Jack Neely, using descriptions and brief bios, the
illustrated guide will offer a gateway to Knoxville’s music heritage and to the city’s appeal.

The 32-page two-tone booklet will have a print run of 6,000 booklets.

This new guide will be designed to be a companion to
the highly popular “Knoxville: A Walking Literary Guide,”
published in 2022. which has been distributed to more
than 6,000 people. 

Sponsorships and contributions help fund the total
project of $15,250 to cover the cost of research, writing,
design, printing and distribution. 

Sponsors, donors, and funders will be recognized in
the guide, KHP's website, social media, and promotions.

To learn more about funding and sponsorship
opportunities, please contact: 

Paul James, Director Development
865-337-7723 or paul@knoxhistoryproject.org



The Southern Railway Station on Depot Street was crowded from the day it opened in 1903 and attracted street
musicians like singer-songwriter Charlie Oaks, a blind guitarist who sang his ballads of tragedy for nickels. One of his best-
known songs was "Southern Railroad Wreck" about the New Market Train Wreck of 1904. It was known as a printed ballad
before a shorter version was recorded in New York, about 20 years later, by another Knoxville street performer, George
Reneau. Some historians have suggested Oaks was America’s first professional country musician.

FEATURED SITES AND MUSICIANS 1

The site of the former St. James Hotel on Wall Avenue highlights Knoxville’s deep and dynamic heritage in the
development of American popular music. In 1929 and 1930, the Brunswick Record Company recorded sessions in a
makeshift studio set up in the hotel lobby. They recorded bands including the Tennessee Ramblers, Howard
Armstrong’s Tennessee Chocolate Drops, and Leola Manning, whose song “Satan is Busy in Knoxville” is the central
track in multiple compilations of St. James sessions recordings on the renowned Bear Family Record label. 

The third floor of the Holston Building on Gay Street, during the 1940s, was occupied by WROL Radio, which daily
hosted live country music and the new form of bluegrass. Among the newcomers at WROL were Lester Flatt and Earl
Scruggs, former members of Bill Monroe’s famous Bluegrass Boys where they recorded four singles that launched them
onto the national stage. The duo may have done more than anyone to popularize bluegrass music.



On the 100 block of Gay Street, is the former site of Knoxville's most popular radio station, WNOX, where between 1936
and 1954 fans would daily pack the small auditorium to watch the popular variety show, "Mid-Day Merry Go-Round" led
by Lowell Blanchard, featuring all kinds of music, even classical and jazz. The show became known as a trying ground for
country musicians, including Chet Atkins, Homer and Jethro, Kitty Wells, the Carter Sisters, Carl Butler, and Don Gibson.

FEATURED SITES AND MUSICIANS 2

Frequently on the 100 block of Gay Street in the 1930s was Arthur Q. Smith, a songwriter who signed away the rights
to many of his best works, often for as little as the price of a beer. Among those who made hits of his songs were Hank
Williams, Ernest Tubb, Bill Monroe, and Dolly Parton. Smith, who lived in an apartment on nearby West Vine, spent many
hours at the Three Feathers bar at the corner of Jackson Avenue.

Located on the north end of Gay Street, during the 1950s and early ‘60s, was the headquarters of WIVK radio.
Dolly Parton was a teenager from the foothills of the Smoky Mountains, but frequently came to Knoxville to perform on
the radio. Her first solo broadcast was at WIVK, which accommodated a small studio audience for live shows. It was here, in
the late 1950s, that Dolly "fell in love with her audience," as she would later recall it. 



Market Square, established as a farmer's market in 1854, has been a cultural center ever since, especially known for live
music. In the 1800s, farmers would play fiddle to attract customers to their stalls. From 1897 to 1960, the iconic Market
House’s auditorium often hosted live music. Fiddlers’ conventions became a regular event here, attracting well-known
talent from out of town, such as Fiddling John Carson and Uncle Dave Macon. But jazz was no stranger here as in 1934,
when bandleader Duke Ellington performed here with his orchestra. 

FEATURED SITES AND MUSICIANS 3

In the 1950s, record giant RCA considered Market Square, with its daily mixture of old and young, Black and white, to be a
bellwether for national tastes—and took special interest in the summer of 1954 when a new record called "That's All Right,"
was a sales phenomenon here at Sam Morrison’s Bell Sales Music store. The first record by an unknown Elvis Presley
was suddenly selling in the thousands on Market Square and one reason why RCA later signed him on a major contract the
following year.

Knoxville is fortunate to have two historic theatres close to each other on Gay Street. Built in 1909, the Bijou Theatre is
Tennessee's oldest secular auditorium, and has hosted live music from its opening night, a wide variety of entertainers
from Will Rogers to John Phillip Sousa to Dizzy Gillespie. Chet Atkins has performed here, as has Pete Seeger, Doc
Watson, Del McCurry, and many others. 



Built in 1928, the Tennessee Theatre opened as a sumptuous theater and brought in thousands daily to see new movies
and musical performances. Roy Acuff played his first show before a seated audience here, in 1932, with a band called the
Three Rolling Stones. In 1935, the Grand Ole Opry arrived for an unusual road performance, with the Opry's stars of the
day, including Uncle Dave Macon. The Tennessee has also hosted Steve Earle, Merle Haggard, the the Everly Brothers.
and Johnny Cash performed one of his last full concerts here.

FEATURED SITES AND MUSICIANS 4

Overlooking the Tennessee River, the 17-story Andrew Johnson Hotel was the tallest building in East Tennessee when it
opened in the late 1920s. By 1935, WNOX was hosting live shows there, featuring both jazz and the latest country-music
phenomenon, Roy Acuff and his Crazy Tennesseans. On the last day of 1952, a teenaged chauffeur arrived with a
particularly famous boss, 29-year-old Hank Williams, the Alabama singer-songwriter on his way to concert dates to the
north. Nearly every detail about that night is disputed, except for this one: before dawn on New Year's Day, 1953, Hank
Williams was dead. Jazz band Maynard Baird’s Serenaders often played here over the years.

Also to be featured will be the Civic Auditorium, the first large performance venue to open in Knoxville without
segregating audiences in regard to race. Out in east Knoxville, the Jacob Building at Chilhowee Park in its early days
hosted big-band jazz and later where Knoxville first discovered rock and roll. The University of Tennessee campus is also
musically significant, both through its music students and faculty, like composer/conductor David Van Vactor, who led
UT’s new Department of Fine Arts, but also via notable concerts on campus, especially at Alumni Memorial Auditorium,
which served as Knoxville’s primary performing-arts center for about 30 years.



Project 
Renderings / 
Sample Pages











 

 
APPLICATION 
 
Name:  Mark Campen d/b/a Conservation Cooperative     
       
 
Your Mailing Address:  1429 S. Courtney Oak Ln. Knoxville, TN 37938  
       
 
Phone Number  (865) 414-5593     Email Address mcampen7@hotmail.com  
      
 
Project Address: Downtown Knoxville/ CBID       
    
 
Requested Amount: $3,500.     Total Project Costs: $10,000.  
   
  
1. Describe the project:    

The first bag dispenser was installed in 2004 in the Cradle Of Country Music Park, which 
is still one of the most used dispensers. There are now 26 dispensers downtown and in 
the periphery, which are serviced weekly with this funding.     
  

2. If applicable, has the project been submitted and/or approved by the Downtown Design 
Review Board (D1) or the Historic Zoning Commission (H1)? ☐ Yes  ☐ No    
N/A 

3. Will you be receiving or asking for any financial incentives/assistance from other 
sources?  

 If so, how much: Yes. Funding from other sources help cover costs outside of downtown. 
There are approximately 80 dispensers in the city. This request covers downtown and the 
areas immediately in the downtown vicinity. 

4. Anticipated state date:   1/1/2024  Anticipated completion:  12/31/2024  
 

5. Has this project received DKA funding in the past?  If so, when and amount? Yes.  

 Since 2004, this project has been funded and grown to the current amount to help 
cover its growth. The requested amount has not been increased in many years. 

 
6. How does your project help enhance the CBID’s mission to make downtown a better 

place in which to live, work and play?  

Thousands of bags are used downtown every year, helping keep pet waste from 
accumulating. The waste reduction helps keep the green spaces and sidewalk areas 
cleaner, reducing odor and the potential of city goers from stepping in pet waste. Our 

mailto:mcampen7@hotmail.com


 

 
initial involvement originated from concern for water quality. Encouraging pet owners 
to pick up their pets waste reduces the large amount of fecal contaminants in every pile 
that inevitably runs off into nearby creeks and the river.   



Conservation Cooperative’s 

2024 PET WASTE BAG DISPENSER PROJECT   

 

  



 

 

Current dog bag stations installed as of March 15, 2024: 

(In bold are Downtown Knoxville locations) 

O. P. Jenkins at Summit Hill (2) 

100 Block Gay St./ Emporium (1) 

W. Depot @ Marble City Food Hall (1) 

Summer Pl. @ Walnut (1) 

Locust St. (1) 

Market Square (1) 

Krutch Park area (3) 

Wall Ave. (2) 

Sequoyah Hills (11) 

Lakeshore Park (7) 

Mary James Park (1) 

Island Home Blvd (3) 

Island Home Park (1) 

Turkey Creek Wetland Park and Greenway (4) 

East of OP Jenkins/ Summit Hill (1) 

Old North Knoxville/ Oklahoma Ave area (3) 

Downtown Dog Park (3) 

James Agee Park (1) 



Caswell Park/ Ashley Nicole Dream Playground (1) 

Victor Ashe Park (2) 

Sam Duff Memorial Park (2) 

Volunteer Landing Marina and Greenway (2) 

Fairmont-Emoriland (3) 

Sutherland Ave. (2) 

Southern Glass Building (1) 

Emory Place (1) 

Depo at Central  (1) 

Suttree Landing Park (3) 

Edgewood Park (2) 

State St. and S. Central (2) 

Jacksboro Pike area (2) 

Fountain City Park (3) 

Charter-Doyle Park (2) 

Holston River dog Park (2) 

Northwest Middle School walking trail (1) 

Women’s Basketball Hall of Fame (1) 

Marble Alley  (2) 

Old City (2) 



 

New locations proposed 

Church @ State St., Marble Alley (Embassy valet parking area, Firestation @ 
Chesapeake’s 

Volunteer Landing greenway to Ned McWherter Park (2) 

West Hills Park/ Jean Teague Greenway 2-3 

World’s Fair Park 1-3 (may have been installed already-TN IWL supplied PBA with 
2-3 spring 2008) 

Tyson Park 2-3 

FUTURE FUNDING: 

With over 80 boxes installed and many more proposed, we need more funds to 
continue and grow this project. The data shows, if you install them they will get 
used!  

2004-2006: 3,000 bags and 9 new boxes installed 

2007: 5,000 bags and 7 new boxes  

2008: 11,200 bags used, 8 new boxes  

2009:  35,000 bags and 5 new boxes  

2010-2011:  42,000 bags and 4 new boxes  

2011-2012:  67,000 bags and 4 new boxes 

2012-2013:  68,000 bags and 5 new boxes 

2013-2014:  82,000 bags and 3 new boxes 

2014-2015: 120,000 bags and 4 new boxes 



2015-2016: 110,000 bags and 4 new boxes 

2016-2017: 110,000 bags and 5 new boxes  

Calculations and project renewal have switched from city fiscal year to 
calendar year. 

2017 Totals: 115,000 bags and 5 new boxes 

2018: 116,000 bags and 6 new dispensers 

2019: 129,000 bags and 5 new dispensers 

2020-2022: 150,000+ each year (88 cases, 2000 bags per case) 

2023-present A pallet+ of 90-100 cases are used each year. 

PAST and POTENTIAL SPONSORS: 

City of Knoxville Engineering, Parks and Rec. and Public Service 

City People 

Water Quality Forum 

Kingston Pike-Sequoyah Hills Homeowners Association 

Central Business Improvement District/ Downtown Knoxville 

Neighborhood organizations 

Veterinarian offices and other pet related businesses 

Prestige Cleaners 

Downtown restaurants  

Annual Budget is $9-10K: ($3,500) Downtown Knoxville Alliance, ($2,500-3K) 
City of Knoxville, ($3K) Kingston Pike-Sequoyah Hills Association, ($400) Forest 
Heights Neighborhood Association.       





BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 
 STAFF REPORT FOR MARCH 2024 
 

DEVELOPMENT 
• Three non-profits are preparing a Request for Catalyst Projects. 

MARKETING 
• Shift to spring marketing including website, digital, Market Square banners, garage 

elevator posters, etc. 
• Newsletters released on March 1 (spring festivals, music and markets). 
• Ongoing updates to social media and online engagement; website updates for businesses, 

event calendar, and Insider’s Guide. 
• Social Media – 174,013 followers (previous: 171,762; 168,972; 165,346). 
• Marketing Committee met March 12. 

BUSINESS SUPPORT 
• Working with Big Ears on promoting late-night dining and grab-and-go options during 

festival weekend, plus highlighting art exhibits and live music at downtown venues. 
• Website update and promotion for March 1 First Friday ArtWalk. 
• Information to businesses on monthly events and conventions impacting staffing. 

QUALITY OF LIFE 
• Attended meeting to discuss Old City Safety.  Looking to alter DKA's off-duty officer's 

hours to later in the evening. 
• Met with KPD and City officials to discuss cameras in downtown. 
• Cleaned-up downtown areas after Mardi Growl. 
• Quality of Life Committee meeting held March 11. 
• Attending the Mayor's Leadership Summit on Homelessness will be held March 20. 
• Continue to provide road closure notifications to businesses. 
• Continue to assist with Market Square permits. 

OTHER 
• Met with Visit Knoxville to discuss ways to welcome US Olympic Team Trials - Diving to 

Knoxville in June. 
• Accepting resumes for DKA's Marketing Position. 
• Preparing for Annual Meeting. 

 



POTENTIAL PROJECTS FOR FY 24-25 
 

 
The board discussed several ideas for the upcoming fiscal year, which will be further discussed 
at upcoming meetings and with DKA's various committees. 
 

1. Office Market Engagement 
a. Engage large companies in Knox County 
b. Include members of large office companies in the Business Support Committee 
c. Form a committee or taskforce for office tenants to discuss potential 

engagement ideas for downtown employees 
d. Bringing back Pop-Up Shops 

2. Office Space for DKA 
3. Develop a better connection with UT 

a. Bringing students downtown 
b. Retaining students after graduation 

4. Activate Market Square during the holidays in place of the icerink 
5. Enrich connections to multipurpose stadium 
6. Direct pedestrians from Market Square and/or Locust Street garages to Market Square 
7. Krutch Park Extension Improvements 
8. Increase budget for events 
 
From Quality of Life Committee: 
1. Pairing dog waste bag dispensers and trash together, with the goal of having something on 

each corner of downtown or block. 
2. Addressing the trash/dirtiness on the streets/sidewalks on the outskirts of downtown.  

Market Square and Gay Street look good but less frequented streets need trash picked up 
regularly. 

3. Beautification/art projects on the barriers for new projects downtown (i.e. allowing people 
to paint plywood on barriers.  DKA could provide the plywood and developers could install 
the boards) 

 
 


	March_24_Board_Meeting_Packet
	1 March Agenda
	Board of Directors’ Meeting
	agenda
	march 18, 2024, 11:30 am


	2 MInutes from February
	board of directors’ meeting
	minutes
	February 19, 2024, 11:30 am


	3 DKA February 2024 Financial Package
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 1 Feb 2024
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 2 Feb 2024
	DKA Income Stmt and Cash Flows Page 3 Feb 2024
	DKA StatementofCashFlows 2.29.24
	DKA Balance Sheet 2.29.24
	DKA P&L 2.29.24
	DKA AR Aging 2.29.24
	DKA Accrued Payables 2.29.24.pdf
	Feb 2024


	4a Recommendation_Budget_Summary
	4b Applications
	5 QoL Packet
	Minutes from QoL Mtg 3.11.24
	quality of life committee
	minutes
	March 11, 2024, 11:30 am


	Knoxville Music History Walking Guide Application
	1 DKA_Quality_of_Life_Application KHP 2023
	application
	APPlication Checklist

	2 KHP Music Guide  Literary Reprinting Budget
	Sheet1

	3 Knoxville Music History Walking Guide Overview
	KHP Literary Guide Project Renderings or Sample Pages
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5


	Consevation Cooperative
	Mission
	What we fund
	guidelines/criteria
	application
	Application Checklist

	2024 DOG BOXES Report

	6 Staff Report for March
	Board of Directors’ Meeting
	 Staff report for march 2024
	DEVELOPMent
	Marketing
	Business Support
	Quality of life
	other


	7 POTENTIAL PROJECTS FOR FY 24

	QoLife Budget FY 23-24
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPA3A0.tmp
	Board of Directors’ Meeting
	agenda
	march 18, 2024, 11:30 am





